MASTER CONTRACT AGREEMENT

Between the

LOVELAND EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

an affiliate of the

Southwestern Ohio Education Association, The Ohio Education Association The National Education Association

and

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

of the

LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Effective

JULY 1, 2021

Through

JUNE 30, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
SECTION I		
Article 1 -	Recognition Agreement	2
Article 2 -	Association Rights	4
Article 3 -	Grievance Procedure	9
Article 4 -	Reduction in Force	17
Article 5 -	Disciplinary Action	19
Article 6 -	Working Conditions	20
Article 7 -	Evaluation	21
Article 8 -	No Discrimination/No Reprisal	28
Article 9 -	Board Policies	29
SECTION II		
Article 10 -	Pay Periods	31
Article 11 -	Change of Pay Brackets During the Year	31
Article 11A -	Tuition Reimbursement	31
Article 12 -	Salary Regulations	32
Article 13 -	Compensation	32
Article 14	Retired Teachers Employed by the District	33
Article 15 -	Supplemental Contracts and Salaries	33
Article 16 -	Supplemental Salary Schedule	35
Article 17 -	Travel Reimbursement	36
Article 18 -	Severance Pay	36
Article 18A -	Super Severance Pay	37
Article 19 -	STRS Pick-Up	37
Article 20 -	Insurance and Fringe Benefits	38
SECTION III		
Article 21 -	Job Descriptions	42
Article 22 -	Contract Year	42
Article 23 -	Contract Day	43
Article 24 -	Meetings Outside Contract Day	44
Article 25 -	Contracts	45
Article 26 -	Contract Renewal	45
Article 27 -	Class Size	46
Article 28 -	Emergency Period Substitutes	46
Article 29 -	Parent Conferences and Observations	47
Titlolo ZJ	I MI WILL SOUTH OF WILL SOUND THUMBER	2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

		Page
SECTION IV		
Article 30 -	Bargaining Unit List	49
Article 31 -	In-service Workshops	49
Article 32 -	Academic Freedom	49
Article 33 -	Substitute Calling Procedure	50
Article 34 -	Dress Code	50
Article 35 -	Complaint Procedure	50
Article 36 -	Personnel Files	51
Article 37 -	Assignments, Vacancies, Promotions, Involuntary	54
	Transfers and Reassignments	23
Article 38 -	Admission of Non-Resident Students	56
Article 39 -	Subcontracting of Educational programs	59
Article 40 -	Complimentary Passes	59
SECTION V		
Article 41 -	Leave Form	61
Article 42 -	Personal Leave	61
Article 43 -	Professional Leave	62
Article 44 -	Assault Leave	62
Article 44A	Crisis Leave	64
Article 45 -	Sabbatical Leave	64
Article 46 -	Jury Duty or Subpoena	66
Article 47 -	Sick Leave	66
Article 48 -	Unpaid Leaves of Absence	68
Article 49 -	Students Under IEP and Section 504 Plans	69
SECTION VI		
Article 50 -	Duration	71
Article 51 -	Complete Agreement	71
Article 52 -	Contrary to Law	71
Article 53 -	Labor/Management Committee	71
Article 54 -	Cameras in the Classroom	72

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

		Page
SIGNATURE PAGE		73
APPENDIX I -	Salary Schedules	74
APPENDIX Ia	Supplemental Salary Schedules - Athletics	75
APPENDIX Ib-	Supplemental Salary Schedules - Academic/Activity	76
APPENDIX Ic	Supplemental Salary Schedules – Fine Arts	77
APPENDIX II -	Ohio Revised Code 1347, 3309.41, 3313.20, 3313.47, 3317.13, 3317.14, 3319.11, 3319.111, 3319.13, 3319.141, 3323.01, 4117 and 4117.08	78
APPENDIX III	Memorandum of Understanding - Mentoring	79
APPENDIX IV -	Board Policies 3120.06, 9130.01, AG9130.01	80
APPENDIX V -	Glossary of Abbreviations	83
APPENDIX VI -	Memorandum of Understanding - Grandfathered Article 39	84
APPENDIX VII -	Submission of Transcript Form	85

SECTION I

Article 1	Recognition Agreement
Article 2	Association Rights
Article 3	Grievance Procedure
Article 4	Reduction in Force
Article 5	Disciplinary Action
Article 6	Working Conditions
Article 7	Evaluation
Article 8	No Discrimination/No Reprisal
Article 9	Board Policies

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION AGREEMENT

The Board of Education of the Loveland City School District and the Loveland Education Association hereby establish the following procedures for collective bargaining between the parties:

A. Recognition:

- 1. In that the Loveland Education Association, an affiliate of the NEA/OEA/SWOEA, has been certified by SERB, the Loveland Board of Education, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" hereby recognizes the Loveland Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association" as the sole collective bargaining agent of those bargaining unit members specified in paragraph 3, they being referred to as "bargaining unit members" or "employees."
- 2. The Association recognizes that the Board is the duly elected body charged with the authority and responsibility to establish the educational and other policies of the Loveland City School District, and it is further charged by law with the sole authority and responsibility to establish the rules and regulations by which the school district shall be governed; accordingly, subject only to the limitations specifically set forth in this Contract. The Association recognizes that the Board retains all of the authority delegated to it pursuant to the Law, including but not limited to Sections 3313.20, 3313.47 and 4117.08 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- 3. The working practices set forth in this Contract shall apply to both full and part-time certificated/licensed bargaining unit members whether under contract or on leave employed by the District for any work currently being performed by bargaining unit members except those in the following positions:
 - a. Superintendent
 - b. Assistant Superintendents
 - c. Principals
 - d. Assistant Principals
 - e. Administrative Directors
 - f. Supervisors
 - g. Managers
 - h. Occupational Therapists
 - i. Aides
 - i. Tutors
 - k. Psychologists
 - 1. All other administrators who are required to have administrative certification for employment and evaluate personnel on a regular basis.
 - m. Substitute/Occasional Employees Except where otherwise specifically provided by in this Contract, the conditions of employment and compensation for substitute/occasional employees shall be as stipulated by the Board at the time of employment or as modified subsequently by mutual understanding

between the Board and the employee. When a substitute employee has been assigned to one specific position for a period of sixty days, that employee then becomes a Long Term Substitute, on the sixty-first day.

- 4. Only the following articles of this contract shall apply to long term substitutes, except they will be paid on the first step of the salary schedule at the BA-0 step.
 - a. Grievance article 3
 - b. Reduction in Force article 4
 - c. Pay Periods article 10
 - d. Travel Reimbursement article 17
 - e. Insurance and Fringe Benefits article 20
 - f. Emergency Period Substitute article 28
 - g. Parent Conferences article 29
 - h. Substitute Calling Procedure article 33
 - i. Prep and Conference Time article 35
 - j. All Leaves articles 40 48

B. Procedures for conducting Negotiations

- Negotiating Teams The Board, or designated representatives(s) of the Board, will
 meet with representatives designated by the Association for the purpose of discussing
 and reaching mutually satisfactory agreements. Representatives shall be limited to
 five (5) representatives each of the Board and the Association, unless mutually agreed
 otherwise.
- 2. All issues proposed for discussion shall be reduced to writing in comprehensive style by each party, the Board and the Association, and presented to the other party at the first meeting. Mutual consent shall be necessary for the parties to discuss any additional proposal not presented at the first meeting. The second meeting and all necessary subsequent meetings shall be called at times mutually agreed to by the parties.
- 3. Negotiations Procedures Designated representatives of the Board shall meet at such mutually agreed upon places and times with representatives of the Association for the purpose of affecting a free exchange of facts, opinions, proposals and counterproposals in an effort to reach mutual understanding and agreement. Both parties agree to conduct such negotiations in good faith and to deal openly and fairly with each other on all matters. All negotiation meetings are to be in executive-type sessions. Following the initial meetings as described above, such additional meetings shall be held as the parties may require to reach an understanding on the issue(s) or until an impasse is reached. Meetings shall be held at a time when Association representatives do not have normal teaching duties, except as described in Article 2 paragraph I. Both parties shall have the right to caucus at any time. If agreement is not reached after 60 days or 45 days prior to the expiration of the Contract, whichever comes first, either party may declare impasse.

C. Exchange of Information

Both parties shall furnish each other, upon reasonable request, available information pertinent to the issue(s) under consideration.

D. Consultants

The parties may call up to three (3) consultants to assist in preparing for negotiations, and to utilize them for consultations during negotiation sessions as they so choose. The expense of such consultants shall be borne by the party requesting them.

E. Reaching Agreement

- Tentative agreement on negotiation items shall be reduced to writing and initialed by the representatives of each party, but such initialing shall not be construed as final agreement.
- 2. When a Tentative Agreement is reached, it shall be reduced to writing as a memorandum of understanding and submitted to the Association and thence to the Board. If the agreement is ratified by the Association, it shall then be submitted to the Board, which shall act upon it at the next regular Board meeting, or by a date mutually agreed upon by the two parties. If either party fails to ratify, in total, as presented to it by its negotiating representatives, a meeting of representatives of both parties shall be called within ten (10) days of the announcement. This meeting may continue negotiations or declare an impasse. When an agreement is reached, the Association and Board agree to abide by the terms of the agreement and to take the necessary action to inform its members of the terms of the agreement.

F. Disagreement

In the event an impasse is declared the impasse procedure of Chapter 4117 of the ORC will be utilized by the parties.

G. Severability

If any item(s) or provisions thereof agreed upon as a result of these negotiations shall be found contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such provision or application shall be deemed invalid, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 2 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

A. The Association shall be allowed the use of school buildings for Association meetings of bargaining unit members provided there is no interference with any scheduled activities. The use of such buildings shall be arranged with the principal in advance. The decision of the

building principal concerning the use of the building shall be controlling. The use of the buildings shall not be unreasonably denied.

B. Communications

- 1. Association materials may be distributed in a reasonable manner through the intradistrict systems.
- Any mail transported by the intra-district system shall not be opened by anyone other than the recipient unless permission to open individual mail is given by the intended recipient.
- 3. Board supplied envelopes or folders used to transport intra-district communications shall be returned by the recipient to the building secretary within a reasonable time.
- C. The Association may use existing bulletin board space in the teacher's lounge areas, for the purpose of posting Association notices and information. If there is no existing bulletin board, the Association shall be provided adequate space to post Association notices and information.
- D. The Board will supply to the Association president, when available or within a reasonable time, the following documents:
 - 1. Training and experience grid
 - Treasurer's monthly financial reports
 - 3. Five-Year Forecast which shall include the following information:
 - Actual FTEs in each classification defined in the Cupp report for the previous two (2) and the current school years;
 - b. Projected FTEs in each classification defined in the Cupp report for the next two (2) school years;
 - c. The number of new hires for the previous two (2) and the current school years;
 - d. The average years of experience for salary placement of new hires for the previous two (2) and the current school years.
 - 4. Auditor's Amended Certificates of Estimated Resources
 - 5. Appropriation Resolution
 - 6. Annual budget

- 7. Annual Summary Report and rate increase data for all insurance coverage.
- E. Payroll deductions shall be provided at no cost to the Bargaining Unit Members for any purpose provided that:
 - 1. A bargaining unit member wishing to use the payroll deduction system signs and delivers to the Board an authorization form requesting the payroll deduction.
 - The authorization form is submitted either during the month of September or during the month of January.
 - 3. A minimum of five (5) individuals sign authorization forms for the same company, organization or tax sheltered annuity to be deducted. Bargaining unit members seeking a deduction of money for tax sheltered annuities acknowledge and agree that the employee, but not the Board, shall assume any liability if the deduction made on the employee's behalf is found to be improper or illegal by the Internal Revenue Service.
 - 4. Adjustments to any payroll deductions may occur at any time. These authorizations shall continue in effect until such time that the bargaining unit member gives written notice to the Treasurer of the Board to discontinue such deductions or employment with the Board is terminated.
 - 5. Deposits of the employee deductions shall be made to the employee's TSA company within five (5) working days of the deduction from the employee's salary. Monthly deductions are to be equally divided and withheld from the paychecks on the fifth (5th) and twentieth (20th) of each month.
- F. All payroll deductions for TSA's in place at the commencement of this contract shall continue to be maintained for the life of this contract unless discontinued by the Bargaining Unit Member.
- G. Upon request, the Superintendent shall meet with the President of the Association to discuss matters of concern to the Association.
- H. Building-level committees may bring to the appropriate administrator(s) problems and building-wide concerns over policies and operations. This practice is not designed to impair the one-to-one communications between bargaining unit member and administrator.
- I. Whenever bargaining unit members are mutually scheduled by the Association and Board to participate during regularly scheduled working hours in conferences, meetings or negotiations, they shall suffer no loss of pay and the Board will cover the cost of Substitute services.

The Board will grant the Association ten (10) days for the use by bargaining unit members to conduct Association business. The Board will grant an additional four (4) days of

Association leave to permit the Association president or designee to attend GCIC Board of Director Meetings. This release time will be in addition to each bargaining unit member's normal personal leave days. Use of any Association release time must be approved by the President of the Association and the Superintendent which will not be unreasonably denied.

The President of the Association and officially elected delegates or alternates to the annual OEA conventions will be granted release time without loss of pay to attend these conventions, upon approval by the Superintendent which will not be unreasonably denied. Association convention release time will be for a number of bargaining unit members equal to the number of elected delegates, for not more than three (3) days per person.

- J. Upon official confirmation of a special Board meeting, the Association president shall be notified of the time and location of the meeting. The Association president shall be sent a copy of the Board meeting agenda when it is sent to the members of the Board.
- K. In the event a bargaining unit member is in a scheduled class, any messages of an urgent nature shall be forwarded to the bargaining unit member's room.

In the event an officer of the Association is in a scheduled class, any telephone message designated as Association business shall be forwarded to the officer's room.

L. The Board shall set aside one duty-free evening per month so that all bargaining unit members may have the opportunity to attend Association meetings. The Superintendent and the president of the Association shall mutually agree each year to the day for each month of the calendar prior to the final development of the annual school activities calendar, but no later than June 15.

M. Association Payroll Dues Deduction

- 1. Payroll deductions of the total affiliated Association dues shall be provided at no cost to the member. Members may at any time sign and deliver to the Association an authorization form requesting payroll deduction of total affiliated Association membership dues and assessments, which shall be forwarded to the Board. Such authorization shall continue in effect until such time that said member gives written notice to the Association to discontinue such deductions or employment with the Board terminates. The Association dues will be deducted in equal amounts beginning with the second pay in October or within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the signed authorization form, whichever occurs last, and ending with second pay in July.
- 2. All money so deducted shall be direct deposited into the Association account. A list of employees for whom deductions were made and the amount for each said employee will be sent to the Association Treasurer. If a member gives written notice to the Association to discontinue such deductions, the Association shall provide to the Board Treasurer the names of said members, and at that time dues shall be discontinued. The Board shall not discontinue dues without authorization from the Association. The Association shall be responsible for reimbursing any member any

owed dues that are taken out after the notification to the Association if the Association fails to notify the Board.

- N. Representatives of the Loveland Education Association, affiliate of the NEA/OEA/SWOEA, may meet with bargaining unit members before or after the member's workday, on the member's planning time or lunch break. Prior to meeting with (a) bargaining unit member(s), the representative must report to the principal's office and indicate with whom and where the representative is meeting. The meeting shall occur only in areas where no students are present.
- O. Association solicitation shall be permitted on Board premises when both the employees performing the solicitation and the employees to whom the solicitation is directed are on non-work time (such as, lunch periods, relief periods and before or after an employee's work time). Distribution of Association institutional literature may take place only in areas where no students are present and on the employee's non-work time. Association activities shall not be conducted in a manner, which will interfere with the operation of the district or with Board facilities.
- P. The Board will provide electronic copies of this contract to all LEA members, at LEA expense, within thirty (30) days after the contract is signed by the parties. The contract will also be made available to bargaining unit members through the district computer network. Official hard copy contracts of record will be maintained by the LEA President and the Superintendent/designee.
- Q. An employee directory for the current school year shall be made available to all bargaining unit members on or before the first pay day in October. At the request of any bargaining unit member, his/her telephone number and/or address shall not be listed in the directory or disseminated in any way.
- R. The Association shall have access to and the use of all equipment and technologies to facilitate communication, including the use of district email.
 - The Association shall have access to paper and other office materials such as staplers, tape, correction tape, etc. The Association shall be charged actual cost to the school district for such materials.
- S. A telephone shall be provided in each building for the private use of bargaining unit members.
 - a. Such telephones shall be in a place readily accessible to employees.
 - b. This phone is to be used primarily for official school district business.
 - c. No long distance calls shall be made from this phone unless prior consent is given by a building administrator.
 - d. Personal calls shall be kept to a minimum.

ARTICLE 3 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The parties recognize the need for an efficient and effective method for solving problems in the Loveland School District. The following procedure is designed to achieve this end. Bargaining unit members are encouraged to attempt to settle differences or disputes before filing a grievance. If such an attempt is inappropriate or ineffective then the grievance procedure shall be used.

DEFINITIONS:

Grievance

Procedure A - An alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of the written provisions of this agreement

F------

Procedure B - An alleged violation of a Board policy, rule, or regulation and/or an

administrative policy, rule, or regulation.

Grievant - An employee or group of employees alleging a violation, misinterpretation or

misapplication of the written provisions of this agreement. A grievance alleged by a group shall have arisen out of identical circumstances affecting

each member of said group.

Day - A scheduled workday on the school calendar. In the event that the processing

of a grievance runs past the last day of the school year, a day shall be defined

as a normal workday for the administrators involved.

PROVISIONS:

- A. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the individual rights of a bargaining unit member having a complaint or problem to discuss the matter informally with members of the administration through normal channels of communications, without intervention or consultation of the Association, provided the adjustment of such complaint or problem is not inconsistent with the terms of existing personnel policies and this Contract.
- B. The primary purpose of this procedure shall be to obtain at the lowest level and in the shortest period of time, resolution to grievances which may arise.
- C. All bargaining unit members shall have the right to file a grievance as set forth in this procedure without fear of reprisal. For the purpose of this article, reprisal shall be defined as blatant discrimination against a grievant regarding his/her employment status and/or evaluations.
- D. A grievant shall have the right of representation at any level of this procedure. This, however, shall be limited to a single representative at Steps One and Two of the procedure.
- E. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level of this procedure.

- F. Time lines of this procedure shall be considered as maximums, unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing.
- G. The Association will designate one or more representatives for processing grievances in each building. The name of the designated representative(s) shall be given to the principal of the building concerned and to the Superintendent within one (1) week after such designation.
- H. Uniform Application The Board agrees to apply uniformly all Board policies, rules, regulations and administrative rules and regulations to all members of the Bargaining Unit throughout the Loveland School System. This Section H shall be limited to Procedure B of this procedure.

PROCEDURE:

Step One - Procedure A and B:

A grievant shall initiate a grievance within fifteen (15) days of the time when the grievant is made aware or should have been aware upon the exercise of reasonable diligence of the event or situation upon which the grievance is based or such grievance is deemed waived. The written grievance shall be filed with the employee's building principal (in the case where the principal has no authority to render a decision, the Superintendent) within the fifteen (15) day limit. Within five (5) days of the receipt of the written grievance, the principal (in the case where the principal has no authority to render a decision, the Superintendent) shall arrange a hearing. grievant must be present at the hearing but may be represented by a member of the Association. The principal (in the case where the principal has no authority to render a decision, the Superintendent) shall render a decision in writing (form B) within five (5) days after the conclusion of the hearing.

Step Two - Procedure A and B:

If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision of the building principal, he/she may within five (5) days of receipt of the written decision (Form B) present the grievance and the building principal's decision to the Superintendent of the Loveland City Schools. The Superintendent shall hold a hearing with the grievant and with other parties of interest within ten (10) days of receipt of the appeal. The Superintendent shall communicate his decision in writing (Form C) to the grievant and principal within ten (10) days of the adjournment of the hearing.

Step Three - Procedure A:

Only grievances defined under DEFINITIONS: Grievance Procedure A, may be processed to this step of the grievance procedure.

If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision of the Superintendent, he/she may within five (5) days of receipt of the written decision (Form C) present the grievance to an arbitrator by giving written notice to the Superintendent.

The arbitrator shall be chosen from a list provided by the American Arbitration Association (AAA). Selection and hearing shall be in accordance with the voluntary rules and regulations of the AAA. The arbitrator shall hold the necessary hearing promptly and issue the decision within such time as may be agreed upon. The decision shall be in writing and a copy sent to all parties present at the hearing. The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding.

The arbitrator shall expressly confine himself/herself to the precise issue(s) submitted for arbitration and shall have no authority to determine any other issue(s) not so submitted to him/her or to submit observations or declarations of opinion which are not directly essential in reaching the determination. The arbitrator shall in no way interfere with management prerogatives involving Board discretion nor limit or interfere in any way with the powers, duties, and rules and regulations having the force and effect of law.

The costs for the arbitration shall be borne by the losing party (hearing and arbitrator).

Step Three - Procedure B:

Those grievances defined under DEFINITIONS: Grievance Procedure B may be processed to this step of the grievance procedure.

If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision of the Superintendent, he/she may within five (5) days of receipt of the written decision from the Superintendent request a review of the decision by the Board. The request shall be submitted in writing to the treasurer of the Board along with copies of the grievance and its disposition at steps two and three. The Board shall hold a hearing on the grievance within one month of the receipt of the materials by the treasurer. The decision of the Board shall be in writing and shall be submitted to the Superintendent and grievant within fifteen (15) days of the adjourning of the hearing.

The Board's decision is final and binding and shall end the grievance procedures under Procedure B.

Griev	ance Form	A
Page	of	

FORMAL GRIEVANCE PRESENTATION

STEP ONE

	Date Grievance	
Grievant	Is Filed	
Home Address of Grievant		
School	Principal or Other Administrator	
Name of Representative That Assisted in Writing This Grievance _		
Specific Section of Agreement, Board	d or Administrative Policy, Rule of	r Regulation Violated:
Statement of Grievance:		
Remedy Sought:		
~		
Constitute the Association	Signature of Grievant	Date
Copy Filed with the Association	yes no	

Grievan	nce Form B
Page	of

DECISION OF PRINCIPAL

To be completed by principal, or of grievance presentation.	her appropriate administrator within five (5) days of formal
Grievant	
Date of Formal Grievance Presenta	tion
Principal or Other Administrator	
•	ninistrator and Reasons: (use additional pages if necessary)
	×
98	
Date of Decision	Signature of Principal
	eted by grievant within five (5) days of decision.
I accept the above de	ecision of principal or other administrator.
I hereby appeal the a	above decision to Procedure
Date of Response	Signature of Grievant
Copy Filed with the Association	yes no

Grieva	ance Form C
Page	of

DECISION BY SUPERINTENDENT

To be completed by Superintendent of Schools within ten (10) days after hearing with grievant; hearing to be held within ten (10) days after receipt of appeal.

	Date of Formal Grievance	
Grievant Presentation		
Date Appeal Receive By Superintendent _	Date of Hearing Held By Superintendent	
Decision of Superint	endent and Reasons:	
Date of Decision	Signature of Superintendent	
Grievant's Response	To be completed by grievant within five (5) days of decision.	
I acce	pt the above decision of the Superintendent of Schools.	
I here	by appeal in accordance with Procedure Four-A to an Arbitrator.	
I here	by appeal in accordance with Procedure Four-B to the Board.	
Date of Response	Signature of Grievant	
Copy Filed with the	Association	

Griev	ance Form	D
Page	of	

DECISION OF ARBITRATOR

Procedure Four-A

Date of Arbitration

	Date of Art	bitration
Grievant	Hearing	
Aulitustaula Bassassa		
Arbitrator's Response:		
Binding decision of the Arbitr	ator is attached to this	document and sent to the following:
For the Board		For the Association
		<u>y</u>
Date Mailed		

Grievance		Form	E	
Page	0	f		

DECISION OF BOARD OF EDUCATION

Procedure Four-B

	Date of Formal	
Grievant	Grievance Presentation	
The attached grievance is her	reby appealed to the Board of Education for a review and hearing.	
Date of Referral	Signature of	
to Board	Grievant	
Board Response:		
To be completed by Board or grievant; Board hearing to be meeting.	f Education Chairman within fifteen (15) days after Board hearing with held at the next regularly scheduled meeting or at an agreed to special	
Date Appeal Received	Date Hearing Held By	
Date Appeal Received By Board of Education	Board of Education	
	ion and Reasons:	
Date of Decision	Signature of Board	
Copy Filed with the Associa	ion yes no	

ARTICLE 4 REDUCTION IN FORCE

- A. The following reasons shall apply when the Board determines it is necessary to reduce the number of certified staff positions:
 - 1. Decline in student enrollment.
 - 2. Return to duty of regular bargaining unit members after leaves of absence.
 - 3. Suspension of schools, or territorial changes affecting the district.
 - 4. Financial reasons.
- B. To the extent possible, the number of bargaining unit members affected by a reduction in force will be minimized by not employing replacements for those employees who retire or resign.
- C. Reductions needed beyond those available by attrition, as mentioned in B, will be made by suspending contracts. The Superintendent shall give notice of intent to suspend contracts to the Association fifteen (15) days prior to the Board action and to all bargaining unit members so affected fifteen (15) days prior to Board action. The Association and Superintendent shall confer on the reasons for such reduction within ten (10) days of receipt of notice of the Superintendent's intent to recommend such reduction to the Board. Except for extraordinary or catastrophic circumstances, any reductions shall take effect as of a date between the last contract day of any school year and the first contract day of the following school year.
- D. A list shall be prepared and kept updated ranking all tenured bargaining unit members by seniority, giving all areas of certification and present teaching assignment(s); then all non-tenured bargaining unit members in the district by seniority, giving all areas of certification and present teaching assignment(s).
- E. Seniority shall be defined as continuous employment of a bargaining unit member beginning with the first date the bargaining unit member reported for duty. Continuous employment shall include all time on sick leave, Board approved leaves of absence, military leave, disability retirement to a maximum of five years, and all time during suspension pursuant to a reduction in force if the bargaining unit member has been recalled. Seniority shall be lost when a teacher resigns or retires and is accepted in the retirement system. In the event two or more members have the same seniority, the person with the earlier date of application will be more senior. If a tie remains, seniority will be determined by lot.

F. Procedure

If it is deemed necessary by the Board to reduce staff, the Board shall proceed to suspend contracts for teachers who have been evaluated in accordance with the evaluation procedure of this agreement. Suspension of contracts shall be recommended by licensure/certification area and an order shall be based on the following:

- 1. First, the Board shall handle staff reductions through normal attrition (early retirement, resignations, etc.)
- Second, limited contract teachers shall be reduced first utilizing the following order:
 - a. Licensure/Certification
 - b. Competency as determined by a rolling three years' average rating of teacher performance of the formal evaluation
 - c. When evaluations are comparable, seniority in the District shall prevail
- 3. Third, continuing contract teachers shall be reduced by utilizing the following order:
 - a. Licensure/Certification
 - b. Competency as determined by a rolling three years' average rating of teacher performance of the formal evaluation
 - c. When evaluations are comparable, seniority in the District shall prevail
- 4. Using the criteria in this provision, the District will establish the order in which members' contracts are suspended and will recall members in reverse order.
- 5. For the term of this Agreement, all evaluations resulting in a final holistic rating of Accomplished, Skilled, or Developing shall be deemed comparable. An evaluation resulting in a final holistic rating of Ineffective shall be considered less than comparable and may result in a teacher with more seniority being reduced before a teacher with less seniority.
- G. Displacement rights may be exercised by those bargaining unit members affected by the reduction who are certified to teach in a different teaching field. The affected bargaining unit member may displace the least senior bargaining unit member who is currently assigned in the affected bargaining unit member's second area of certification provided that the evaluations of the displacing teacher and the displaced teacher are comparable as determined by Article 4(F)(5). The displaced bargaining unit member may also exercise displacement rights, if possible, or shall be part of the reduction in force. The displacing bargaining unit member must have completed two (2) successful years, in the second area of certification within the past five (5) years, or undertake a Superintendent approved in-service or training program in said teaching area. Cost for such program shall be borne by the Board.
- H. The names of bargaining unit members whose contracts are suspended in reduction in force shall be placed on a recall list for up to twenty-four (24) months from the date of suspension. Bargaining unit members on the recall list shall have the following rights:

- 1. No new teachers will be employed in a regular position while there are individuals on the recall list who are certified for that position.
- 2. Bargaining unit members on the recall list will be recalled in order of seniority for regular vacancies if their evaluations are comparable as determined by Article 4(F)(5), provided they are qualified and certified for that position.
- 3. If a vacancy occurs, the Board shall send an announcement by certified mail to the last known address of all bargaining unit members on the recall list who are qualified according to these provisions. It is the bargaining unit member's responsibility to keep the Board informed of his/her current address and phone number. Any bargaining unit member who fails to respond in writing to the Superintendent's office within ten (10) business days, or declines a regular position, shall forfeit all recall rights.
- 4. A bargaining unit member on the recall list shall, upon acceptance of the notification to resume active employment status, return to active employment status with the same seniority, accumulation of sick leave and salary schedule placement as said bargaining unit member enjoyed at the time of layoff.
- 5. If the bargaining unit member desires to continue his/her group insurance benefits, he/she may do so through COBRA coverage.
- I. The Administration will provide letters of recommendation for bargaining unit members affected by a reduction in force, and will attempt to provide other forms of assistance, where possible, upon the request of the bargaining unit member.
- J. To the extent permitted by law, these reductions in force provisions shall supersede and replace ORC 3319.17.

ARTICLE 5 DISCIPLINARY ACTION

- A. The Board may take progressive disciplinary action against any bargaining unit member for violations of, or failure to comply with, any provisions of this contract or any rules and regulations adopted by the Board, or other good and just cause.
- B. In any meeting between a Bargaining Unit Member and a representative of the Board at which discipline of that bargaining unit member is to be announced, an Association representative may, at the bargaining unit member's request be present.
- C. The term "discipline," as used in this article, shall include dismissals and suspension for cause or written reprimands to be recorded in the personnel file of any bargaining unit member when such reprimand may be considered as a basis for future disciplinary action.

- D. Procedures Normal progressive disciplinary action will take the following steps:
 - 1. Conference between the bargaining unit member and the appropriate administrator. This is a verbal warning with no action taken. A general record, consisting of date, time and general topic of such conference shall be maintained in the bargaining unit member's personnel file.
 - 2. Conference between the bargaining unit member and the appropriate administrator. At this step a written reprimand shall be provided to the bargaining unit member, who will initial and date it. This does not indicate that the bargaining unit member agrees with the reprimand, only that it has been inspected by the bargaining unit member. The appropriate administrator shall date and initial the reprimand and place it in the bargaining unit member's personnel file.
 - 3. Conference between the bargaining unit member, appropriate administrator, and Superintendent. At this step, the Superintendent may suspend a bargaining unit member for up to ten (10) school days without pay. The outcome of this conference will be documented and provided to the bargaining unit member, who will initial and date it. This does not indicate that the bargaining unit member agrees with the documented outcome, only that it has been inspected by the bargaining unit member. The appropriate administrator shall date and initial the documented outcome and place it in the bargaining unit member's personnel file. If suspension occurs, upon the request of the bargaining unit member, the Board of Education shall review the decision.
- E. It is understood that serious disciplinary matters may result in the issuance of written reprimands and/or suspension as well as termination without first following Step 1, Step 2, or Step 3 of paragraph D above.
- F. Disciplinary action, except for termination, is subject to the grievance procedure as set forth in this Contract. Any termination is subject to section 3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code.

ARTICLE 6 WORKING CONDITIONS

The Board of Education shall provide a safe and healthy place to work.

- A. Adequate heating and ventilation will be provided for all classrooms and other areas where teaching takes place so that there are no extremes in temperature control.
- B. Notification of use of room and materials by outside sources shall be given in advance.
- C. Well-lighted, ventilated, clean teacher lounges and/or work areas will be provided where feasible.

- D. Specific announcement periods over public address systems shall be established in each building by the principal. Such schedule shall be adhered to except in case of emergency.
- E. Any change in teaching conditions affecting the majority of the bargaining unit members within a building shall be presented and discussed with the bargaining unit members and principal prior to implementation.
- F. Properly ventilated restroom facilities shall be provided in all buildings where feasible for use of male and female staff members.
- G. Except during emergency situations, and to the extent possible, the administration should schedule custodial and maintenance work at times that prevent, or minimize, student class interruption.
- H. All of the buildings operated by the Board shall be smoke free.

ARTICLE 7 EVALUATION

- A. OTES/OSCES EVALUATIONS The Board and Association are required to implement the new version of the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System ("OTES") evaluation framework beginning with the 2021-2022 school year for bargaining unit members who meet the definition of "Teacher" in Board Policy po3220 and for bargaining unit members who meet the definition of "School Counselor" in Board Policy po3223. The new framework will be implemented in accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the Ohio Department of Education, statutory provisions related to OTES/OSCES, and Board policy. In addition, the parties agree upon the following:
 - 1. Evaluators Will be credentialed contracted employees of the Board of Education.
 - 2. <u>Evaluation Instrument</u> Will be the then-current OTES/OSCES process and forms used by the member's evaluator.
 - 3. <u>Orientation</u> Within twenty (20) workdays of the first teacher workday each year, each member shall be notified in writing of the name and position of the individual evaluating him/her for that school year. The District shall hold an OTES/OSCES overview meeting for members being evaluated no later than September 30th of each year.

4. Schedule for Evaluation

i. Contract Not Expiring:

In any year when a member's contract does not expire, a minimum of two (2) formal observations shall be completed, with the first being a formal holistic

observation and the second being a formal focused observation on identified focus areas. Each observation shall last a minimum of thirty (30) minutes, which the evaluator shall strive to make continuous minutes. In addition, at least two walkthroughs with an emphasis on identified focus areas (when applicable) shall be completed.

Observations shall be preceded by a conference between the evaluator and the member at least one (1) day and not more than five (5) workdays prior to the observation in order for the member to explain lesson plans and objectives for the class which will be observed. A post-observation conference shall be held between the evaluator and the member no longer than five (5) workdays after the formal holistic observation.

The post-observation conference after the first observation shall be held on or before December 10th. The second post-observation conference shall be held on or before May 1st. No later than May 10th, a copy of the formal written evaluation report shall be given to the member and a conference shall be held between the member and the evaluator.

ii. Contract Expiring:

In any year when a member's contract is expiring, a minimum of three (3) formal observations shall be completed unless the administration waives the third observation. Under no circumstances shall a member's contract be non-renewed unless a minimum of three (3) observations have been completed. The first observation shall be a formal holistic observation and the subsequent observations shall be formal focused observations on identified focus areas. Observations shall each last a minimum of thirty (30) minutes. In addition, at least two walkthroughs with an emphasis on identified focus areas (when applicable) shall be completed.

Observations shall be preceded by a conference between the evaluator and the member at least one (1) day and not more than five (5) workdays prior to the observation in order for the member to explain lesson plans and objectives for the class which will be observed.

All post-observation conferences shall be held between the evaluator and the member no longer than five (5) workdays after the observation.

The post-observation conference after the first observation shall be held on or before December 10th. The remaining post-observation conferences shall be held on or before May 1st, with the evaluator attempting to ensure that no two (2) observations occur within twenty (20) workdays of each other

No later than May 10th, a copy of the formal written evaluation report shall be given to the member and a conference shall be held between the member and the evaluator.

5. Walkthroughs

A walkthrough is a formative written assessment that has the following components:

- A building/individual member awareness of the focus for the walkthrough prior to each walkthrough.
- b. The administrator will provide the member with the Walkthrough General Feedback Form no later than three (3) workdays after the walkthrough. If a member or principal requests a meeting, a meeting will be held at a mutually agreeable time.
- 6. Response to Evaluation The member shall have the right to make a written response to the evaluation and to have it attached to the evaluation report to be placed in the member's personnel file.
- 7. <u>High Quality Student Data</u> High quality student data (i.e. local-determined data that provides evidence of student learning attributable to the teacher being evaluated) will not be utilized in evaluations during the 2021-2022 school year to the extent prohibited by law.

Under OTES 2.0, at least two measures of high-quality student data are used as evidence of student learning attributable to the teacher being evaluated. High-quality student data will meet the criteria listed in Board policy. Where applicable, high-quality student data will include value-added progress dimension data.

Teachers will select high quality student data in consultation with their evaluator.

Teachers will be responsible for providing evidence to their evaluator demonstrating that they have used high-quality student data in the following ways:

- a. Critically analyze and reflect upon results to support improvement and enhancement of student learning;
- b. Assess student learning needs and styles, including the strengths and weaknesses of an entire class as well as individual students in each class;
- c. Inform and adapt instruction to meet student needs; and
- d. Measure student learning achievement and growth, as well as progress toward achieving state and local standards

8. <u>Exemptions</u>

If a member receives a final summative evaluation of Accomplished on his/her most recent evaluation, the member will be evaluated one every three school years, so long as the member submits a self-directed professional growth plan to the evaluator that focuses on specific areas identified in the observations and evaluation and the evaluator determines that the teacher is making progress on that plan.

If a member receives a final summative evaluation of Skilled on his/her most recent evaluation, the member will be evaluated one every two school years, so long as the member and evaluator jointly develop a professional growth plan that focuses on specific areas identified in the observations and evaluation and the evaluator determines that the teacher is making progress on that plan.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Superintendent/designee may elect to conduct more frequent evaluations on a member subject to the exemptions set forth in the foregoing two paragraphs in the event the Superintendent/designee determines there is a bona fide need to conduct more frequent evaluations.

In any year that a member is not formally evaluated pursuant to this Article as a result of receiving a rating of accomplished or skilled on the member's most recent evaluation, the evaluator shall conduct at least one observation. The observation shall be preceded by a conference between the evaluator and the member at least one (1) day and not more than five (5) workdays prior to the observation in order for the member to explain lesson plans and objectives for the class which will be observed. At least one conference with the member shall be held, which conference shall include a discussion of progress on the teacher's professional growth plan. The conference will not be held prior to the observation.

The District shall not conduct an evaluation for any teacher who:

- a. Was on leave for fifty percent (50%) or more of the school year and the teacher is employed under a continuing contract;
- b. Submitted notice of retirement, and such notice has been acted upon by the Board of Education, on or before December 1 of the school year in which they plan to retire;

9. Professional Growth Plans (PGPs)

Professional growth and improvement plans shall be developed as follows:

a. Teachers whose evaluation rating is Accomplished shall develop a self-directed PGP and may choose, by mutual agreement with the Superintendent/designee, the credentialed evaluator for their next evaluation cycle.

- b. Teachers whose evaluation rating is Skilled shall develop a PGP collaboratively with his/her credentialed evaluator and may have input on the selection of the credentialed evaluator for their next evaluation cycle.
- c. Teachers whose evaluation rating is Developing shall develop a PGP that is guided by their assigned evaluator.

By September 30th, evaluators will meet with each teacher rated Accomplished to review the self-directed PGP for the current school year.

By September 30th, evaluators will meet with each teacher rated Skilled to collaboratively develop a PGP for the current school year.

By September 30th, evaluators will meet with each teacher rated Developing to develop a PGP with the teacher for the current school year.

PGPs will have no more than two (2) achievable goals per Evaluation Cycle.

10. Improvement Plans

A teacher in their first year of employment with the District shall not be placed on an improvement plan.

By September 30th, teachers whose evaluation rating is Ineffective shall develop a professional improvement plan with their assigned evaluator.

An improvement plan shall include:

- a. Specific, measurable instructional practices to be observed;
- b. Specific, evidence-based resources, and assistance to be provided; and
- c. Clearly articulated timelines for the completion of the plan; and

A teacher placed on an improvement plan may request a teacher mentor/coach or another mutually-agreed upon teacher of the District to facilitate further discussion between the teacher and the evaluator toward expectations in an improvement plan.

No Improvement Plan will have more than three (3) achievable goals per Evaluation Cycle. The Board shall provide professional development, mentoring/coaching, the allocation of financial resources to accelerate teacher growth and improvement; and support to poorly performing teachers.

11. Evaluation Program Review

The Association and Board agree that the Labor/Management committee will regularly review the effectiveness of the policies, procedures, and processes,

including the evaluation instrument and determination of HQSD of the Evaluation Program.

11.1 Administrative Feedback

It is the desire of the Board, the building principals, and the Association that the building principals receive meaningful feedback from the Association with respect to the management and operation of each building. The Association may gather input from each teacher and produce written summative feedback to each building principal regarding the management and operation of each building. Such written feedback shall be submitted on or before February 1st of each year. In the event a building principal or the Association President wishes to have a discussion regarding such submitted feedback, the Association President and building representative shall meet with the building principal within ten (10) calendar days of receiving a request for such a meeting.

- B. Non-OTES/OSCES Evaluations The language in this sub-section applies only to those teachers who are not under the evaluation requirements of 3319.111 and 3319.12 and 3319.113 of the Ohio Revised Code et al. as of the date of ratification of this Agreement. The evaluation of these bargaining unit members shall continue to follow the existing procedure as outlined herein. The Board and the Association agree that any evaluation program under this sub-section will include the following:
 - 1. A uniform instrument for rating bargaining unit members.
 - 2. A philosophy of evaluation whereby the evaluator will assist the bargaining unit member in improving his/her instructional and professional performance.
 - 3. The evaluation procedure covered in Board policy and the district's instrument shall be used in evaluating all bargaining unit members.
 - 4. The Superintendent shall be an evaluator when requested by the bargaining unit member or principal; or, when the Superintendent desires to do so.
 - 5. Each observation shall be made in person. All monitoring or observation of the work of a bargaining unit member shall be conducted openly and with the full knowledge of the bargaining unit member.
 - 6. A copy of a written report of any classroom observation tied to the formal evaluation process will be given to the bargaining unit member within 10 school days. A conference with the bargaining unit member and administrator will be held within these same 10 days, but not necessarily at the same time as the deliverance of such written report. The written report of the completed evaluation needs to be given to the bargaining unit member by the appropriate deadline as described in Article 7, section D. The bargaining unit member shall have the opportunity to review the

evaluation report with the evaluator. All evaluations shall be based upon the valid criteria for evaluating professional growth. If the employee feels a rebuttal is necessary, he/she has ten (10) working days to present written rebuttal, which will be attached to the evaluation.

- 7. The written report of the formal evaluation shall include specific recommendations regarding any improvements needed in the performance of the bargaining unit member being evaluated and regarding the means by which the teacher may obtain assistance in making such improvements.
- 8. The self-assessment form will be placed in the personnel file only if requested by the bargaining unit member. The peer-assessment form will not be placed in the personnel file.
- 9. It is the right and responsibility of the Board to establish policy and procedures for evaluation and in doing so the Board looks to the administration, the employees, and the Association for comments and recommendations to improve current policy and procedures.
- 10. Bargaining unit members shall be evaluated annually through a system, which includes self-assessment and informal or formal administrative assessment(s). Any bargaining unit member will have the option of acquiring and presenting a peer-assessment to the evaluator.
- 11. Evaluation of bargaining unit members with limited contracts up for renewal includes:
 - a. Self-assessment and a pre-evaluation conference with the building administrator.
 - b. Formal evaluation with at least one (1) observation by January 15, and completed by January 25.
 - c. Additional formal evaluation as deemed necessary by the building administrator, with at least one observation by May 1, and completed evaluation by May 10. An additional formal evaluation is required if the Board is going to offer a contract of shorter duration than the bargaining unit member has received in the past.
- 12. Evaluation of bargaining unit members on multi-year limited contracts not up for renewal includes:
 - a. Self-assessment
 - b. Observation by an administrator for at least thirty (30) minutes on at least one (1) occasion, with the written observation being provided to the bargaining unit member.

- c. Evaluation conference with building administrator if requested by the bargaining unit member or administrator.
- d. Formal evaluation may be conducted as deemed appropriate by the building administrator.
- 13. Evaluation of bargaining unit members on continuing contracts includes:
 - Self-assessment
 - b. Evaluation conference with building administrator if requested by the bargaining unit member or administrator.
 - Formal evaluation may be conducted as deemed appropriate by the building administrator.
- 14. An employee in a "selected position" and his/her evaluating administrator mutually may agree to waive the thirty (30) minute observation requirements per above and instead permit "on-going" observation without specific observation dates and times. As used in this division, "selected position" includes the following: nurse, speech/language therapist, media specialist, building coordinator, education evaluator, and middle school athletic director.

ARTICLE 8 NO DISCRIMINATION/NO REPRISAL

- A. There shall be no discrimination nor reprisal of any kind, by the Board, against any employee because of membership in the Association.
- B. There shall be no discrimination nor reprisal of any kind, by the Board, against any employee because of sanctioned Association activity.
- C. There shall be no discrimination nor reprisal of any kind, by the Board, against any employee because of a bargaining unit member's Association position.
- D. No bargaining unit member shall be prevented from wearing or displaying insignia, pins, or other identification of membership in the Association at any time by the Board.
- E. The Board supports the rights conferred on the bargaining unit members by Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- F. No unfair labor practice charge will be filed on any matter which involves any subject matter covered by this article.

ARTICLE 9 BOARD POLICIES

As stated in Article 1, the Association recognizes the Board as the duly elected body charged with the authority and responsibility to establish the educational and other policies of the Loveland City Schools. The Board recognizes that certain regulations and policies should remain constant and unchanged throughout the course of the school year.

The Board agrees that policies 3120.06, 9130.01, and AG9130.01 are among those policies that must remain constant during the school year. The Board agrees that when changes become necessary to these policies, they will only be altered during the months of June, July and August.

Article 20

SECTION II

Pay Periods Article 10 Changes of Pay Brackets During the Year Article 11 Tuition Reimbursement Article 11A Article 12 Salary Regulations Salary Schedule Article 13 Article 14 Retired Teachers Employed by the District Supplemental Contracts and Salaries Article 15 Supplemental Salary Schedule Article 16 Article 17 Travel Reimbursement Article 18 Severance Pay Article 18A Super Severance Pay STRS Pick-Up Article 19

Insurance and Fringe Benefits

ARTICLE 10 PAY PERIODS

The Contract year shall be divided into twenty-four (24) equal pay periods. The first pay will be the fifth (5th) of the month. Subsequent pay-days shall fall alternately on the twentieth (20th) and fifth (5th) of each month for the remainder of the Contract year.

All employees of the district will participate in the direct deposit payment plan.

In the event that the Treasurer initiates a debit action on any of the bargaining unit member accounts designated on the bargaining unit member's direct deposit form, the Treasurer shall provide notification to the affected bargaining unit member. Such notification shall be made within two (2) working days after the debit action and shall include an explanation and/or justification for the debit action taken.

Holidays

When the pay-day falls on the weekend or on a holiday, the employee shall be paid on the last weekday before the date due to be paid.

ARTICLE 11 CHANGE OF PAY BRACKETS DURING THE YEAR

Only hours earned from an accredited college recognized by the State Department of Education for certification purposes shall qualify and count towards hours on the salary schedule. However, correspondence courses may be accepted for placement on the salary schedule if the courses and the hours are approved by the Superintendent. CEUs and PDUs will not qualify as hours for placement on the salary schedule.

Employees wishing to move to another column of the salary schedule based upon additional hours shall file the form attached hereto as APPENDIX VIII with the Treasurer of the Board by September 15, along with satisfactory evidence of the completion of the qualifying additional hours. If the hours meet the conditions set forth in this paragraph, the Treasurer shall place the employee on the appropriate column of the schedule, with the employee being paid on the new step of the schedule beginning with the first day of the school year.

ARTICLE 11A TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

The Board will provide 100% tuition reimbursement to bargaining unit members, up to a maximum of three (3) credit hours each, and up to a total Board contribution of \$60,000 during a contract year (July 1-June 30). Prior to beginning any coursework, bargaining unit members shall apply for tuition reimbursement using the online platform. Coursework must meet the definition in the first paragraph of Article 11 – Change of Pay Brackets During the Year. The bargaining unit member

must have earned a "B" or better or "pass" a pass/fail class to be eligible. The annual reimbursement amounts are based on coursework completed during the contract year (July 1 – June 30). Reimbursement for coursework completed between July 1 - December 31, shall be limited to \$35,000. Reimbursement for coursework completed from January 1– June 30 shall be limited to \$25,000, plus any carry over from the first period. Unencumbered funds as of June 30 up to \$10,000 will carry over to the next fiscal year. Only bargaining unit members returning to the district are eligible for this program. Bargaining unit members must submit an official grade report from the granting institution, as well as proof of personal out of pocket tuition payment. Tuition Reimbursement will be paid out on a first come, first serve basis until maximums have been reached.

ARTICLE 12 SALARY REGULATIONS

- A. Bargaining unit members newly employed by the Board shall be placed on the salary schedule in the manner provided in 3317.13 and 3317.14 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- B. One year's teaching experience shall be defined as not less than one hundred twenty (120) days of teaching during a given school year. A year of military service is defined as eight (8) continuous months or more in active military service. Maximum credit for experience outside Loveland District 12 years. This provision shall supersede ORC 3317.13B.
- C. For proper placement on the salary schedule, the bargaining unit member being employed shall furnish an official transcript of credits, a valid teaching certificate, and if Armed Forces credit is to be granted, a copy of discharge or separation form 214, to the Superintendent of the Board no later than September 15. Upon submission of such information, the bargaining unit member shall immediately be moved to the proper placement on the salary schedule retroactive to the beginning of that bargaining unit member's contract year.
- D. It is the responsibility of the bargaining unit member to inform the Superintendent's office of any change in qualification for salary adjustments.
- E. A stipend of \$1,000 will be paid annually, at the conclusion of the school year, to any bargaining unit member who instructed in an area in which they are Nationally Board Certified.

ARTICLE 13 COMPENSATION

A. The base salary of all professional employees shall be paid in accordance with the salary rates set forth in the adopted schedules. The base salary is pay for a normal teaching load. The schedule is based upon the principle of equal pay for qualifications and experience. (Salary Schedule in Appendix 1.)

The base salary shall increase by 0% for the 2021-2022 school year. The base salary shall increase by 0% for the 2022-2023 school year.

ARTICLE 14 RETIRED TEACHERS EMPLOYED BY THE DISTRICT

Any employee who has retired under the Ohio State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) or any other State Teachers Retirement System in the United States and subsequently is employed in the district may be hired and paid at a rate of pay between steps 0 and 12 on the salary schedule contained in this agreement. For such retired employees only, this provision expressly supersedes section 3317.13 of the Ohio Revised Code and all other applicable laws.

Such teacher is only eligible for a one-year limited employment contract that shall be automatically non-renewed at the end of that year. Such employee will not resume nor be eligible for continuing contract status during any period of employment with the district. For such employees only, this provision expressly supersedes the individual contracts and contract renewal provisions of this agreement (Article 25 and 26), sections 3319.11 and 3319.111 of the Ohio Revised Code, and all other applicable laws.

Such employee who is interested in obtaining insurance benefits, must opt for the insurance benefits offered by STRS or such other appropriate State Teachers Retirement System and, therefore, is ineligible for district-provided insurance benefits (Article 20) through December 31, 2008. Effective January 1, 2009, a retired employee of the district will be eligible for district provided insurance benefits (Article 20). Such employee is not eligible to receive any severance or super severance payment upon leaving the employment with the district (Articles 18 and 18A).

For purposes of reduction in force (Article 4), such employee shall begin with zero (0) years seniority in the district. For purposes of sick leave (Article 48), such employee shall be considered a beginning employee and start with zero (0) days of sick leave accumulation.

This provision of the agreement and its terms will not be grievable under the grievance procedures of this agreement nor through any claim or action filed before the State Employment Relations Board (SERB) or any court of law.

ARTICLE 15 SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS AND SALARIES

- A. All professional bargaining unit members assigned additional responsibilities and/or granted additional compensation for such responsibilities shall be give a written supplemental contract that is in addition to their regular contract.
- B. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to prohibit the Board from offering a supplemental contract to any individual, with employees receiving first consideration. Such additional time to be paid at the rate as established by contract, provided that no individual bargaining unit member shall be required to accept a supplemental contract, with the exception of B(1). Nor shall anything herein contained be construed to prohibit the addition of supplementary contract categories to the schedules as proposed. Such positions shall be a matter for negotiations. The Supplemental Salary Schedule, with a listing of supplemental

positions and the dollar amounts to be paid for the performance of the supplemental duty, shall be attached to this document.

1. The Board may require that the following teaching positions accept the corresponding supplemental position(s), however, in that case, the teacher's performance of duties of the supplemental position shall not be used as a basis to justify any non-renewal, reduction, or discipline of the underlying teaching contract:

a.	Band Director	LHS Marching Band,
		LHS Band Director
b.	LHS Choir Director	LHS Choir Director,
		LHS Show Choir
c.	LHS Jazz Band Director	LHS Jazz Band Director
d.	LHS Orchestra Director	LHS Orchestra Director
e.	LMS Band Director	LMS Band Director
f.	LMS Choir Director	LMS Choir Director
g.	Yearbook	Yearbook
h.	LIS Music Teachers	Beginning Band, Beginning Choir, Beginning Orchestra
i.	Elementary Music Teachers	Elementary Music Directors

- C. Only Article 16 (Supplemental Salary Schedule) and Section B of Article 38 (Vacancies) of this Contract, and the appropriate parts of the ORC pertaining to supplemental contracts shall apply to the filling of supplemental contract positions.
- D. Supplemental Review Committee.
 - 1. A Supplemental Review committee (SRC) shall be appointed by the Board and the Association.
 - a. Appointments shall be for the length of this agreement unless the appointee is no longer able to serve as appointee.
 - b. The Committee shall be comprised of six (6) members. Three (3) members shall be appointed by the President of the Association. Three (3) members shall be appointed by the Superintendent.

- c. At such time as an appointee is no longer able to serve, the President of the Association will name a replacement.
- 2. The SRC will be responsible for making a recommendation to the Superintendent, after reviewing requests submitted by teachers and administrators, for:
 - Adding a position.
 - b. Deleting a position.
 - c. Moving a supplemental on the supplemental salary schedule (to be moved only at such time as a new negotiated agreement between the Board and the Association shall be implemented).
 - d. Creating or revising a job description.
 - e. Reviewing all supplemental contract job descriptions and placement on the supplemental salary schedule prior to the expiration of this agreement.
 - Designing a Proposal Process for any of the above additions, deletions, moves or creations.
- 3. The Superintendent, upon receipt of the SRC recommendations, shall consider said recommendations and take appropriate action. The Superintendent will inform the SRC of his/her decision prior to recommendation to the Board.
- 4. The SRC shall adopt its own procedures and meeting dates notifying the Association President and the Superintendent.

ARTICLE 16 SUPPLEMENTAL SALARY SCHEDULE

- A. The salaries of the supplemental positions are based on Supplemental Salary Schedules in Appendix Ia, Appendix Ib and Appendix Ic.
- B. Any person with a supplemental contract, in the area of athletics, will be paid for that supplemental position by direct deposit, after approval of the athletic director. The schedule for payment will be:

SUMMER ACTIVITIES

on or before September 20

FALL ACTIVITIES

on or before November 20

WINTER ACTIVITIES

on or before March 5

SPRING ACTIVITIES

on or before May 20

- Exceptions: The middle school athletic director and assistant high school athletic director are to have their salaries divided equally throughout the year
- C. All supplementals will be paid by direct deposit, separate from the regular payroll. Full year non-athletic supplementals will be paid by lump sum, one-third (1/3) of the total payment made on November 20, March 5, and May 20. Seasonal and individual activity supplementals will be paid by lump sum on the supplemental pay-date, which most closely follows administrative approval of completion of responsibilities. For extended time at the end of the school year, payment will be included in the June 20 regular payroll direct deposit.
- D. Notifications for supplemental salary contracts shall be not later than June 1 for year-long, winter and spring activities. Notifications for supplemental salary contracts shall be not later than January 30 for fall and summer activities.
- E. Bargaining unit positions that included extended days during the 2019-2020 school year will retain that number of extended days. In the event the Board seeks reductions in the number of extended days of bargaining unit positions herein, the Board will discuss the reductions with the Union prior to any Board action.

ARTICLE 17 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT

A. In arranging schedules for bargaining unit members who are assigned to more than one building within the district, an effort will be made to limit the amount of inter-school travel. Any employee assigned to two (2) or more buildings during a day shall be reimbursed for that required travel between buildings at a rate that adheres to the IRS guidelines for vehicle reimbursement.

Travel reimbursement does not apply to supplemental contract work and travel related thereto within the Loveland City School District.

B. The Board shall provide liability insurance for all bargaining unit members who are required to transport students.

ARTICLE 18 SEVERANCE PAY

The Board will pay for accumulated sick leave upon retirement of the bargaining unit member in accordance with the following procedure:

A. Severance pay will be calculated using unused accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 250 days. The Board will pay bargaining unit members thirty-five (35) days plus twenty-five (25) percent of unused sick leave days above thirty-five (35) at the time of retirement.

- B. The daily pay rate of the bargaining unit member will be his/her base rate as of the last day of service. The daily rate for salaried bargaining unit members will be calculated by dividing the most recent base salary by the number of work days in the approved school calendar. The daily rate for hourly bargaining unit members shall be calculated on the number of hours worked while on the last regular assignment, not to exceed forty (40) hours for one week.
- C. Payment for sick leave on this basis will eliminate sick leave credit accrued by the bargaining unit member at that time. Such payment may be made only once to any given bargaining unit member at the time of retirement as defined and regulated by the State Teachers Retirement System of the State of Ohio or in the event of death, a bargaining unit member's eligibility for severance pay will be determined as of the final day of his/her employment.
- D. No retirement contribution will be deducted from severance pay.

ARTICLE 18A SUPER SEVERANCE PAY

In the event a bargaining unit member resigns his/her employment with the Board for retirement purposes effective the end of the work year that he/she first becomes eligible to retire with reduced or unreduced benefits through the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) and who actually retires through STRS at the end of that year, he/she shall receive a lump sum payment of \$8,000.00 plus severance pay as provided in the contract. In order to be eligible for such super severance pay, such member must submit an irrevocable letter of resignation of employment for retirement purposes to the Board no later than February 15th of such year. Any bargaining unit member who elects not to resign his/her employment with the Board at the end of the work year in which he/she first becomes eligible to retire with reduced or unreduced benefits through the STRS shall forfeit his/her right to any payment pursuant to this provision and shall be entitled only to severance pay pursuant to Article 18 of this contract upon retirement.

Payment pursuant to this provision shall be considered earned and payable in July following a full year of retirement.

No retirement contribution will be deducted from the super severance pay.

ARTICLE 19 STRS PICK-UP

A. The Board shall annuitize each certificated bargaining unit member's total contribution to STRS by deducting that amount before each bargaining unit member is paid. This procedure shall be as follows: The Board shall designate each bargaining unit member's mandatory contribution to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio as "picked-up" by the Board although they shall continue to be designated as employee contributions. The amount of the bargaining unit member's income reported by the Board as subject to Federal and State income tax shall be the bargaining unit member's total gross income reduced by the then

current percentage of the bargaining unit member's mandatory STRS contribution. No bargaining unit member's total salary shall be increased by such "pick-up," nor shall the Board's total contribution to the STRS be increased thereby. There shall be no increased cost to the Board except incidental administrative cost necessary to implement this program.

B. If there is an adverse determination by the Courts, this pick-up provision shall be null and void. The bargaining unit members acknowledge that the Board is not liable as a result of the implementation of this program and that the bargaining unit member shall assume any liability as the result of an adverse ruling by the Internal Revenue Service or court of law.

ARTICLE 20 INSURANCE AND FRINGE BENEFITS

A. The Board shall offer the health, dental and life insurance plans through the Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium to the members of the Bargaining Unit. If the insurance consortium intends to make a change in coverage in the health or dental plans and either party requests it, negotiations can reopen on health and dental coverage.

Upon request, the Association president shall meet with the Superintendent and Treasurer in the event the Board believes that it might be able to obtain coverage through another consortium that is less costly and substantially similar to the coverage provided through the Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium. No change to the insurance carrier, broker or consortium shall be made by the Board without the Association's consent. Both parties shall have the right to bring their representative and health insurance specialists to the meeting.

The carrier of the insurance programs shall provide the Association president all annual summary reports and rate increase data and information at the same time that it is provided to the Board.

- B. Insurance premiums paid by the Board for part-time bargaining unit members, should they elect to participate in the particular insurance programs, shall be pro-rated proportionate to the number of hours worked per week by the bargaining unit member.
- C. When both spouses are employed by the school district, only one family plan or two single plans will be offered. The Board contribution to the health insurance premium shall be five percent (5%) more than the level of the Board contribution to the health insurance plans as set forth at section I of this article. Spouses realizing this benefit prior to July 1, 2004 shall be grandfathered at a rate of 100% of premium paid by the Board.
- D. Any bargaining unit member who is eligible for and elects not to take Board health insurance, and is not insured by the Board from June 1 to May 31st of the following year, shall receive a stipend of \$1,000 provided the member applies for such stipend by completing the Health Insurance Opt-Out Form and filing the same with the Treasurer's office on or before June 1st. Upon the Treasurer's office verification of timely receipt of the form and entitlement to the stipend, such stipend shall be paid with the June 20th payroll. A

newly hired bargaining unit member is eligible for the opt-out stipend in their first year of employment under the conditions outlined in this section provided the member was not insured by the Board from the date of employment to May 31st of the following year. When both spouses are employed by the school district, only one family plan or two single plans will be offered, and if either one of the bargaining unit members participates in the district's insurance, as either the insured employee or a beneficiary under a policy, neither spouse is eligible for the \$1,000 benefit. In the event neither spouse carries the district's medical insurance plan, each spouse would be entitled to the \$1,000 benefit. Any bargaining unit member not covered by insurance may sign up during the open enrollment period of September 1 to September 15. Any bargaining unit member who was covered by a spouse's insurance plan and loses that coverage shall be entitled to enroll in the group plan within thirty-one (31) days of the loss of coverage. Any bargaining unit member who is hired after the start of school will have thirty-one (31) days to sign up for the insurance plans.

Appropriate insurance carrier's contract regarding other enrollment policy will take precedent.

- E. For those that choose insurance coverage, the Board shall provide full twelve-month coverage commencing with the first day of school (or September 1, whichever is first) and ending twelve months later (or August 31, whichever is last). This insurance shall continue in effect during absences or illness, as specified in the Ohio Revised Code, for which the bargaining unit member may use sick leave. Bargaining unit members on all other leaves of absence (maternity, professional, sabbatical, personal, etc.) may choose to continue participation in this group insurance by remitting the premiums to the treasurer of the Board. Such remittance shall not be required more than thirty (30) days in advance. Upon signature on the proper form to continue his/her group insurance benefits the bargaining unit member shall enjoy uninterrupted coverage.
- F. Insurance in force for the dependent(s) the date of the bargaining unit member's death will remain in force without payment of premium until the earliest of the following dates:
 - 1. Remarriage of the surviving spouse, in which case the coverage for all dependents terminates;
 - 2. The date a covered person ceases to qualify as a dependent for any reason other than lack of primary support by the bargaining unit members;
 - 3. Two years from the date of the bargaining unit member's death.
- G. The coverage which is continued in force for dependent children will not be affected if the surviving spouse dies during the two year maximum continuation of coverage.
- H. The Board shall allow bargaining unit members to purchase additional amounts of life insurance coverage through payroll deduction provided the number of bargaining unit members electing to take advantage of this opportunity is adequate to meet the requirements of the insuring company.

- I. The Board shall pay eighty-five percent (85%) of the premium for single coverage of the health insurance plan. The Board shall pay eighty-five percent (85%) of the premium for family coverage of the health insurance plan, except as indicated in paragraph C. of this article.
- J. The Board shall pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the cost for the life and dental insurance offered by the consortium.
- K. The amount of the insurance purchased per bargaining unit member shall be \$50,000.00 term life insurance.
- L. The Board will implement a "125 Plan" as allowed by law.
- M. The Board will implement an Accumulated Leave Plan. The defined group will be 55 years of age.

SECTION III

Article 21	Job Descriptions
Article 22	Contract Year
Article 23	Contract Day
Article 24	Meetings Outside the Contract Day
Article 25	Contracts
Article 26	Contract Renewal
Article 27	Class Size
Article 28	Emergency Period Substitutes
Article 29	Parent Conferences and Observations

ARTICLE 21 JOB DESCRIPTIONS

- A. All bargaining unit members in a new position will receive a copy of the job description for their teaching assignment by September 1 of each school year. All other bargaining unit members will have access to their job descriptions.
- B. Prior to the beginning of a new duty, any Bargaining Unit Member being transferred will receive the job description for the new position.
- C. Each job description will include "other duties as appropriate".
- D. Bargaining unit members will not be required to perform invasive medical procedures, but are required to take reasonable measures to protect the health and safety of pupils including reasonable responses to emergency situations. Changes in the Board's medication policy effecting bargaining unit members will be bargained with the Association. This provision does not apply to school nurses who are required to perform the duties contained in their job description.

ARTICLE 22 CONTRACT YEAR

- A. The work year for bargaining unit members on regular teaching contracts shall be as follows: a minimum 175 instructional days, and maximum 184 teacher contract days, including ½ day for LEA directed meetings, with the agenda set in collaboration with administration.
 - 1. The calendar shall include a minimum of two (2) half-days and two (2) full days of uninterrupted teacher record keeping/work days. The full days shall be one each at the beginning of the school year and at the end of the second quarter, the half-days shall be one each at the end of the first and third quarter.
- B. If more than the above days are added to the school calendar the employee shall be paid an additional 1/184th of their annual salary multiplied by the number of additional days. Extended service and supplemental contracts shall not be considered as additional days on the school calendar.
- C. All scheduled days shall be during the regular work week of Monday through Friday, exclusive of scheduled school holidays. Exceptions to this shall only be through alterations in the school calendar due to calamities, energy, emergencies, or job action.
- D. The official closing of schools by the Superintendent of Schools on account of severe weather or emergency conditions (calamity days) shall not result in loss of pay. In the event the Superintendent of Schools closes the school more than six (6) times for a calamity during the school year, any future calamity days will be worked by bargaining unit members in the following manner:

- 1. Bargaining unit members will report to work from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
- 2. The day shall be teacher-directed with the exception of ninety (90) minutes which may be utilized/reserved for administrative use, if necessary.
- 3. The only exception for reporting to work would be in the event a Level 2 or Level 3 snow emergency has been declared in the county where the bargaining unit member resides.

It is the responsibility of the Board to adopt a school calendar. Prior to the Board adopting the calendar, the Superintendent and the Association shall meet and jointly develop a calendar for the purposes of recommendation to the Board.

ARTICLE 23 CONTRACT DAY

- A. The bargaining unit member's regular work week shall be thirty-seven (37) hours and thirty (30) minutes. The bargaining unit member's workday shall be seven (7) hours and thirty (30) minutes. Workday includes a duty-free lunch period of not less than thirty (30) continuous minutes.
- B. The bargaining unit member's workday shall begin no sooner than thirty (30) minutes before the building instructional day and end no later than twenty (20) minutes after the building instructional day.
- C. The time limits in Section B may be altered by the building principal so long as such change does not increase the length of the bargaining unit member workday, as set forth in Section A. Prior notice shall be given of any such change.
- D. The term "preparation and conference time" shall mean work time during the bargaining unit member workday, exclusive of the professional staff member's daily duty-free lunch period. This time may be used by a professional staff member for any teacher-related duties.
- E. All elementary bargaining unit members (K-6) and special area elementary bargaining unit members (art, music, health and physical education) shall be provided preparation time of at least thirty (30) consecutive minutes each with at least one (1) per day inside the student day. Each bargaining unit member shall have at least two hundred twenty-five (225) minutes of preparation time per week. Not more than seventy-five (75) minutes of preparation time shall occur outside of the student day. No more than two (2) preparation periods shall occur in one (1) day. Each bargaining unit member shall have at least one (1) preparation period per day.

In the event of financial constraints which lead to the reduction of special area personnel, conference/preparation time will be reduced to two hundred (200) minutes per week within the employee workday.

- F. In grades 7-12, preparation and conference time is to be at least forty-five (45) consecutive minutes daily. To achieve a preparation/conference time of forty-five (45) consecutive minutes, the passing time at the beginning or end of a regular class period may be counted.
- G. Intervention Specialists who have the responsibility for developing and writing IEPs may be provided up to the equivalent of two (2) release days during the school year, scheduled by mutual agreement with the Superintendent/designee, for the purpose of IEP writing and/or modifying.
- H. The terms of this provision may be altered or amended due to emergency conditions. If the emergency condition exists for more than five (5) consecutive working days, any changes to this provision shall only be by mutual agreement between the Board and the Association.

ARTICLE 24 MEETINGS OUTSIDE CONTRACT DAY

The following guidelines shall be utilized for scheduling staff meetings after the teacher workday.

- A. Bargaining unit members may be required to remain after the end of their regular workday without additional compensation not more than one (1) day every two (2) weeks to attend faculty or other professional meetings of not more than thirty (30) minutes duration or one (1) day per month of not more than forty-five (45) minutes duration. All such meetings shall begin no later than fifteen (15) minutes after student dismissal time. No later than September 15th, the Association representatives of the building and the building principal shall meet to determine the meeting schedule (including length and frequency) of the building for the year.
- B. The above mentioned meetings will not include those obligations associated with extended service of department chairpersons and grade level supervisors' supplemental contracts.
- C. Bargaining unit members are expected to attend additional meetings on an as-needed basis. These additional meetings would be emergency in nature and related to the total operation of the schools.
- D. Bargaining unit members and other certificated staff members are required to attend one Open House meeting as well as other "public relations" type meetings on an as-scheduled basis which are related to the building, grade level, or teachers' curriculum area. There will be a maximum of two (2) other such "public relations" meetings where attendance is required.

ARTICLE 25 CONTRACTS

A. Succession of Limited Contracts

Limited contracts shall be issued on the following basis:

Initial Contract

One (1) year

Second Contract

One (1) year

Third Contract

One (1) year (unless eligible for continuing contract)

All additional contracts

One (1) to Five (5) years (at the discretion of the

administration)

- B. When an employee becomes eligible for a continuing contract during the life of a Limited Contract, the Superintendent will review for the possible issuance of a Continuing Contract at that time.
- C. In order to be considered for and eligible to receive a Continuing Contract, the bargaining unit member must notify the Superintendent or designee in writing by January 1, that he/she will be eligible for and wishes to be considered for a Continuing Contract for the next school year. Academic/Certification criteria must be met by the date the Board acts on contracts in April. Failure to provide this notification shall constitute a waiver of any claimed statutory right to a Continuing Contract and shall result in the issuance of a Limited Teaching Contract for the next school year if the bargaining unit member is renewed.

ARTICLE 26 CONTRACT RENEWAL

The non-renewal of a bargaining unit member's limited contract shall be in accordance with sections A. and B. below:

- A. The bargaining unit member shall be notified in writing of the recommendation for nonrenewal at least ten (10) calendar days prior to official Board action. The notice shall include a statement of the circumstances for non-renewal; and
- B. The bargaining unit member shall have the opportunity to appear before the Board with a representative of their choosing in public or executive session to offer rebuttal testimony and documentation, prior to official Board action.
- C. This procedure shall supersede ORC 3319.11, 3319.111

ARTICLE 27 CLASS SIZE

- A. Because the early years are the crucial ones for developing learning behavior, and inasmuch as the pupil-teacher ratio is directly related to the volume of a bargaining unit member's work, efforts will be made to achieve a goal of twenty-five (25) pupils as a maximum for grades K-5.
- B. In grades 6-12, inasmuch as the pupil-teacher ratio is directly related to the volume of a bargaining unit member's work, efforts will be made to achieve a goal of thirty (30) pupils per class as the maximum.
- C. At the option of the Administration, up to an eight period day in grades 6 12 may be implemented, provided every attempt is made to achieve a goal of 180 students as a maximum daily load for a bargaining unit member.

ARTICLE 28 EMERGENCY PERIOD SUBSTITUTES

- A. Bargaining unit members who are requested by their building principal or assigned to teach the class(es) or cover the duty of another bargaining unit member on a temporary basis, shall receive compensation for their services. To qualify for compensation one of the following criteria must be met:
 - 1. There are no qualified substitute teachers available.
 - A bargaining unit member teaches a class when his/her regular schedule calls for him/her to have a conference period.
 - 3. In grades K-6, students are temporarily assigned for more than one hour.
- B. For K-6 bargaining unit members who serve as substitutes, they will be paid on the following basis:
 - 1. If the students of bargaining unit member "A" are divided among other bargaining unit members, the bargaining unit members' rate of pay shall be \$14.00 per hour.
 - 2. If the students of bargaining unit members "A" and "B" are divided among those bargaining unit members, the rate of pay shall be two multiplied by \$14.00 per hour
- C. For 7-12 grade bargaining unit members, the rate of pay shall be \$25.00 per hour.
- D. A bargaining unit member has the right to refuse to substitute without any reprisal from the administration. In the event a physical incident occurs while a bargaining unit member is substituting for another bargaining unit member and they do not hold the required

certification to teach the class, the Board of Education agrees not to impose disciplinary action unless just cause exists while taking into consideration the issue of certification and shall hold the bargaining unit member harmless in accordance with its obligation with Ohio law.

- E. Time records for service as an internal substitute will be maintained. Exact times for each time span of service shall be recorded. Pay will be based on exact number of minutes or hours served. The building principal shall certify each request for payment to the Board office.
- F. The provisions of this Article shall not apply when bargaining unit members are needed to cover classes for grades/departments to meet for staff development.

ARTICLE 29 PARENT CONFERENCES AND OBSERVATIONS

Although cooperation and communication between parents and bargaining unit members is an important facet of education and shall be encouraged at all levels, the normal discharge of an employee's daily responsibilities must be protected. Therefore, employees shall have the right to establish a time and place convenient to them and the parents for parent conferences or classroom observations requested by parents. The administration will assist the bargaining unit member and parent in these matters.

Nothing in this article shall permit the employee to refuse to schedule a conference or observation requested by a parent nor does this apply to regularly scheduled Parent/Teacher Conference days.

SECTION IV

Article 30	Bargaining Unit List		
Article 31	In-Service Workshop		
Article 32	Academic Freedom		
Article 33	Substitute Calling Procedure		
Article 34	Dress Code		
Article 35	Complaint Procedure		
Article 36	Personnel File		
Article 37	Assignment, Vacancies, Promotions, Involuntary Transfers, and Reassignments		
Article 38	Admission of Non-Resident Students		
Article 39	Subcontracting of Educational Programs		
Article 40	Complimentary Passes		

ARTICLE 30 BARGAINING UNIT LIST

The President of the Association shall be provided with a copy of the Seniority List by area of certification by November 15 of every year.

The President of the Association shall be provided a list of all new bargaining unit members no later than five (5) days after the first day of the school year each year and a directory shall be provided to all bargaining unit members. At the request of any bargaining unit member, his/her telephone number and/or address shall not be listed in the directory or disseminated in any way.

ARTICLE 31 IN-SERVICE WORKSHOPS

The Board may provide bargaining unit members district wide in-service workshops, conferences, and programs designed to improve the quality of instruction. On district wide in-service days, bargaining unit members shall begin and end their workdays at their regularly scheduled times and any district wide in-service programs shall occur from 8:30 AM until 2:30 PM with at least one (1) hour lunch period. Attendance at such district wide in-service training programs beyond the inservice workday shall be at the employee's discretion without the fear of reprisal or negative evaluation. Under normal circumstances, Personal Leave days will not be granted by the Superintendent on in-service workdays.

ARTICLE 32 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

- A. The parties seek to educate young people in the democratic tradition, to foster a recognition of individual freedom and social responsibility, and to inspire meaningful awareness of and respect for the Constitution and the Bill of Rights, and to instill appreciation of the values of individual personality. It is recognized that these democratic values can best be transmitted in an atmosphere which is free from censorship and artificial restraints upon free inquiry and learning, and in which academic freedom for bargaining unit members and student is encouraged.
- B. The Board and the Association recognize the rights and responsibilities of bargaining unit members to instruct their classes and to use materials which best represent and describe the subject area. Many materials may be obtained from sources other than the school library or from purchases by the Board. Bargaining unit members shall be familiar with materials to be used, and should be aware of reviews concerning the material.
- C. The Board recognizes that a large part of the curriculum is made up of established truths and values, but also that gradual social change is inevitable, and that such change involves controversial issues. The Board states herein its policy of fostering in the schools dispassionate, unprejudiced, and scientific study of controversial issues in an atmosphere

void of partisanship and bias. Bargaining unit members shall not attempt to limit judgment of pupils on controversial issues, but rather to foster the respect for facts and the impartial search for truth that are inherent in the democratic way of life. The Board shall provide the necessary protection for such academic freedom.

ARTICLE 33 SUBSTITUTE CALLING PROCEDURE

The President of the Association shall be allowed to provide input to the Administration prior to the establishment of the substitute service, procedure and schedule.

ARTICLE 34 DRESS CODE

Dress and grooming of bargaining unit members shall at all times be in good taste, non-distracting, and appropriate for classroom teaching.

ARTICLE 35 COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Community and school communication ideally should be such that most complaints may be resolved through personal conferences at the school level. Various avenues of contact between members of the bargaining unit, complainant, principal, and other appropriate staff personnel should be pursued before using the formal procedures outlined below.

Any complaint or inquiry as to a bargaining unit member's classroom performance will be forwarded to that bargaining unit member as soon as possible, preferably that same day.

PROCEDURE:

- A. Complainants should be referred to the bargaining unit member for an appointment scheduled by the bargaining unit member. The parties may be represented by counsel or an advisor of their choice. The party wishing to be represented shall notify the other party of that fact at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. If the notice is given less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled appointment then the meeting shall be rescheduled for appointment by the bargaining unit member. The parties shall be the complainant and the bargaining unit member only unless they choose to have representation.
- B. If there are unresolved matters from A, or if the complainant refuses to meet with the bargaining unit member, then in either event, the principal will meet with the bargaining unit member and inform the bargaining unit member of the nature of the complaint and give the bargaining unit member the opportunity to present his/her response to the complaint. The bargaining unit member may be accompanied by a representative at this meeting.

- C. If the principal feels there is a basis for the complaint and if a written reprimand is to be issued by the principal, in accordance with Article 5, then the bargaining unit member shall be given the opportunity to present any rebuttal documentation and have the same attached to the written reprimand.
- D. If the bargaining unit member requests, the bargaining unit member may meet with the Superintendent or designee concerning the written reprimand. The bargaining unit member may be accompanied by a representative at this meeting.
- E. Written reprimands for any other reasons shall not be issued until the principal has given the bargaining unit member the opportunity to meet with the principal to discuss the matter.

In the event that a parent or member of the public attempts to lodge a complaint directly with the Board, the Board shall refer the complaining party to the building administrator in accordance with this provision. The Board shall meet with the complaining party directly only after complaining party has met with the building administrator.

ARTICLE 36 PERSONNEL FILE

- A. A personnel file of all bargaining unit members will be maintained in the district's central administrative office. This will be a confidential file, to the extent permitted under Ohio law, and the only official file of the recorded information of bargaining unit members maintained by the Board and/or the Administration.
- B. This file system shall be in full compliance with Section 1347 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- C. Access to the File:
 - Bargaining unit members shall have access to their individual personnel files in the
 presence of a designated administrator. Such access may occur at any time during the
 normal workday, providing it does not interfere with the employee's assigned duties
 or after the normal workday. A request for access to an employee's personnel file
 shall be granted within one (1) working day.
 - 2. Members of the Administration authorized to use personnel files of bargaining unit members shall be limited to the Superintendent, other central office administrative personnel appropriately related to the supervision of that bargaining unit member, School Board Members, building Principal(s) and confidential secretaries.

D. Personnel File Contents:

1. Materials in the personnel file of a bargaining unit member shall be job related, and dated upon placement in the file.

- 2. No material shall be placed in a personnel file which comes from an anonymous source.
- 3. A bargaining unit member may attach a written statement of reply to any item which is placed in his/her personnel file.
- 4. Bargaining unit members may request a copy of any or all materials in his/her personnel file. Cost associated with the duplication of such material shall be borne by the requesting employee at the current copy rate.
- 5. Any bargaining unit member who disputes the accuracy, relevance, completeness or timeliness of material contained in his/her personnel file may request an investigation by the administration as to the validity of the employee's claim. Any information which is found to be inaccurate or irrelevant shall be removed from the employee's file.
- 6. At the time any material except ordinary business records is placed in a bargaining unit member's personnel file, the bargaining unit member shall be given a copy of the material.
- E. Entry of Materials by bargaining unit member The bargaining unit member may submit letters of merit which shall be placed in his/her personnel file.
- F. Signature of bargaining unit member The bargaining unit member's signature will not indicate agreement with the content of the material, but indicates only that the material has been inspected by the bargaining unit member.
- G. Removal of Materials in File:
 - Any materials entered into a bargaining unit member's file may be grieved as to the accuracy, relevance, timeliness, or completeness of such material. If it is found to lack in any of the aforementioned, it shall be removed from the bargaining unit member's file.
 - 2. Information in the personnel file may be removed upon mutual agreement of the bargaining unit member and the administrator making the entry or the Superintendent.
 - 3. An employee shall have the right to have removed, letters of reprimand and/or disciplinary and like materials from the personnel file, if a three (3) year period has elapsed from the time the item was placed in the file and if no additional letter(s) of reprimand and/or disciplinary materials have been placed in this file.

H. Exceptions:

- 1. The Fiscal Officer may keep a separate file containing those items necessary for proper payment to the individuals. These would include transcripts, military separation or DD 214's, experience validations, and sick leave records.
- 2. Such records may be reviewed by the bargaining unit member.
- Copies of any or all documents in this file shall be provided upon request.
- 4. The building Principal may maintain material directly related to supervision of the employee in a separate file.

I. Initial Employment Items:

Letters of recommendation and other related information as they relate to employees used for initial employment are items not to be retained in personnel files or maintained by the local Board or Administration except the following:

- Official transcripts of college work.
- 2. Copy(ies) of certification authorized by the State Department of Education.
- 3. Records of pre-employment medical examinations.
- 4. Records of employment history with this school district and previous employment with other school districts. Information included in this record may consist of:
 - a. Numbers of years taught and dates.
 - b. Records of sick days accumulated.
 - c. Certificate numbers.
 - d. Building, grade level, and course assignments.
 - e. Position on salary schedule and current salary.
 - f. Any additional information included in reports sent by other school districts shall be subject to the stipulations in this section of this article.
 - g. Bureau of Criminal Investigation report and fingerprint check.

J. Unauthorized Access:

The contents of the personnel file of a bargaining unit member shall not be disclosed to any person who is not a Board member, Board employee, or contractor of the Board, except in accordance with the provisions of this Contract, as ordered by a court of law through a validly issued subpoena, through the Ohio public records law or other state law or as authorized in writing by the bargaining unit member.

ARTICLE 37 <u>ASSIGNMENT, VACANCIES, PROMOTIONS,</u> INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS & REASSIGNMENTS

A. Vacancies

It is the object of the Board to obtain the most qualified individuals for employment in the school district. The administrative procedure used for filling such vacancies will be:

- 1. Post job vacancy notices, when vacancies occur during the school year, in conspicuous places within the schools for a minimum of seven (7) calendar days. Employees will receive vacancy notices in an email. The notices shall include the following information:
 - a. Position(s) available.
 - b. Requirements for job.
 - c. Deadline for application.
 - d. To whom to submit application.
 - e. Effective starting date.
 - f. Any additional pertinent information.
- 2. Letters of application must be submitted to the designated person by 4:00 p.m. within seven (7) calendar days of the original posting date.
- A careful analysis of each candidate's qualifications will be made to determine if the candidate's qualifications are appropriate to meet the job requirements. Current employees shall receive initial consideration.
- 4. Applicants from within the district shall receive either written or oral confirmation of the receipt of their application.
- 5. A current employee who applies for a vacancy in a building in which they currently are not assigned shall be entitled to a meeting with the Principal of the building in which the vacancy exists if they hold the proper licensure for the vacant position.
- 6. Interviews for all qualified candidates presently employed by the Loveland City School District will be scheduled.

- 7. Applicants who are presently employed as certificated personnel and not selected for a position, will be notified following the final selection of the candidate. At the request of the employee the Superintendent or his/her designee will inform the applicant not selected as to the reason(s) he/she was not selected for the vacancy. Such information shall be provided in writing only upon request of the applicant.
- 8. During the summer months (June, July, and August), position vacancies will be handled in the following manner:
 - a. Vacancies will be sent to bargaining unit members via district email.
 - b. Bargaining unit members will be contacted for interviews based upon the information provided in the Superintendent's Staff Status Questionnaire completed in February or March of each year.

B. Involuntary Transfer and Assignment

- 1. Bargaining unit members will be notified of their tentative teaching assignment for the following year prior to the end of the school year. Such notice shall be in writing from the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 2. If a reassignment or transfer (change in building) becomes necessary following subject notification, communication of such change shall be made promptly to the affected bargaining unit member. The administration shall consider input from the affected bargaining unit member concerning such change.
- 3. Under normal conditions, if a change of assignment or transfer occurs during the regular school year, or within three (3) days of the beginning of the regular school year, the bargaining unit member being reassigned or transferred shall be granted at least three (3) days to adjust, plan and procure the necessary educational needs for performing this new assignment.
- 4. Bargaining unit member assignments and transfers shall be made without discrimination in regards to race, color, creed, religion, nationality, sex, or marital status.
- 5. If a bargaining unit member has been involuntarily transferred or reassigned to a different teaching area or building, he/she will be provided a conference with the building principal and Superintendent. Such conference shall be a discussion of the reasons causing the transfer. Nothing in this section shall prevent the affected bargaining unit member from utilizing the vacancy section of this article to pursue a transfer.

C. Promotions

When filling vacancies at the supervisory and administrative levels, a bargaining unit member who is a qualified applicant for the position shall receive an interview with the Superintendent. The procedure under vacancies will be used to advertise the positions.

ARTICLE 38 ADMISSION OF NON-RESIDENT STUDENTS

This article is discontinued except for all full-time bargaining unit members, who prior to July 1, 2004 had at least one child enrolled through Article 38. For those grandfathered, all of their existing children with birthdates prior to July 1, 2004 will be eligible to apply for enrollment in Loveland Schools according to the following criteria:

- A. Nonresident students, who are children of current full-time bargaining unit members, may attend Loveland City Schools on a non-tuition basis.
- B. A bargaining unit member who is the parent or legal guardian wishing to enroll a nonresident child to the Loveland School System will make application to the Superintendent for admission on the APPLICATION FOR ADMISSION AS A NON-TUITION STUDENT Form. The Superintendent will then:
 - 1. Review the application and if it appears to meet all admission requirements, he/she will; review the most recent report card and legal evidence of birth for complete compliance with the following requirements:
 - The student shall submit evidence of good attendance and positive school citizenship and social behavior. A nonresident student who is under expulsion or suspension from another school district will not be permitted to enroll in the Loveland Schools.
 - 2. Based upon the above criteria, the Superintendent will accept or reject the proposed admission and will notify the parent/guardian by completing the appropriate section of the application form and returning one copy.
 - 3. Except for graduating seniors, a non-tuition student, upon successful completion of an academic year, must reapply by April 15 for the succeeding academic year. The Superintendent will review such application against the above criteria and will accept or reject the proposed admission and will notify the parent/guardian in writing by July 15.

C. Guidelines for non-tuition students:

1. Transportation of the student is the responsibility of the parent/guardian.

- 2. All requirements and rules and regulations which apply to resident students shall apply to non-resident students.
- 3. If a student is admitted to the Loveland City Schools under this provision, it shall be on the condition that he/she does not request and utilize the post-secondary option. However, if the parent of a student admitted pursuant to this provision wishes to pay any and all costs related to his/her child attending another school pursuant to the postsecondary option, then he/she will be permitted to so do as long as there is no cost to the Board.

APPLICATION FOR ADMISSION AS A NON-TUITION STUDENT

I hereby request that _	<u> </u>	be admitted as a non-tuition		
student in the	grade at the	school for the	school year,	
effective		I agree that if this application	n is approved I will	
abide by the Guidelin	es for Non-Tuition Students.			
Name of School Last	Attended:			
Last School Telephon	ne Number:			
Name of Parent or Gu	uardian:			
Address of Student: _				
	<u> </u>	Home School District:_		
Home Telephone Nur	mber:			
Signature:	:Date:			
**************************************		*********	**********	
Most Recent Report C	Card: yes	_ no		
Legal Evidence of Bir	rth: yes	no		
Admission Granted:		(Date)		
Admission Rejected:		(Date)		
Parents Notified:		(Date)		
	V	_		
Superintendent's/Des	ionee's Signature		Date	

ARTICLE 39 SUBCONTRACTING OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS

Whenever the district is interested in subcontracting any educational program, the LEA shall be given input in the decision-making process prior to any final decision being made by the Board of Education. The Board of Education retains the right to make any final decision on any subcontracting opportunity. Any subcontracted work, however, must be taught by someone certified by the State Department of Education. Any courses offered through an online provider shall be supervised by a member if offered as a part of the student day.

ARTICLE 40 COMPLIMENTARY PASSES

All Bargaining Unit Members shall be issued a complimentary pass to all home extracurricular activities as follows:

- A. All bargaining unit members and one guest are permitted to attend all performances and/or events by identifying themselves at the gate or door. Events which are sold out may be excluded.
- B. Tickets and/or passes are not transferable.

SECTION V

Article 41 Leave Form

Article 42 Personal Leave

Article 43 Professional Leave

Article 44 Assault Leave

Article 44A Crisis Leave

Article 45 Sabbatical Leave

Article 46 Jury Duty or Subpoena

Article 47 Sick Leave

Article 48 Unpaid Leaves of Absence

Article 49 Students Under Individualized Education Plan

(IEP) or Section 504 Plans

ARTICLE 41 LEAVE FORM

Bargaining unit members will utilize AESOP or other District-approved software for an electronic leave form.

ARTICLE 42 PERSONAL LEAVE

- A. Bargaining unit members shall be provided three (3) personal leave days per school year, which may be used for legal or business matters, family emergencies, unusual family obligations, weddings or other personal nature.
- B. Personal leave may not be used to extend a vacation or holiday, for recreation, for other employment, or on a scheduled in-service day under normal circumstances or to accompany a friend or spouse on a trip.
- C. Any member may flex up to two (2) days for religious holidays observed by his/her established religious faith for which the school calendar does not already provide time off. The flex day(s) shall be worked by the member on a non-contractual day during the school year. These days shall not be considered personal days or sick leave. Notice of intent to use practicing faith leave must be made in writing to the Human Resources Officer by September 1 of the current school year and must include the date and nature of the religious holiday being observed and the alternative date the member will work. The member will use their badge to swipe in and swipe out of the building as documentation for fulfilling the alternative workday.
- D. Request for personal leave days, except in the case of an emergency, must be made in writing to the school principal (or designee) at least five (5) work days preceding the day being requested. Notice of approval or non-approval shall be made in writing as soon as possible. If the personal leave is denied the bargaining unit member will be notified by phone immediately, or as soon as possible, if not available immediately.
- E. After an employee has been in the District for three (3) consecutive school years, they may choose one of the following options if they have used no personal leave days:
 - Option I: If an employee has been in the district three consecutive years, they may accumulate up to a maximum of five personal days. If an employee uses one or more days, they will not lose their unused days. Unused days will be carried to the next year. These days will be added to the three days provided at the beginning of the next school year. These additional days will not allow the employee to accumulate more than five personal days.
 - Option II: If an employee has accumulated five personal days and does not use any personal leave during their work year, they may convert all their accumulated

personal leave to sick leave, up to the maximum allowable stated in Article 48. An employee cannot convert only a portion of the unused leave. The following year they will be provided three personal days.

F. Misuse of personal leave may be grounds for disciplinary action.

ARTICLE 43 PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

- A. An employee wishing to attend an educational conference, meeting, or convention may be granted permission upon approval of the Superintendent. The equivalent of 2 days for Intervention Specialists must be approved by the building principal and mutually scheduled.
- B. The Board is authorized, under ORC 3313.20, to pay reasonable expenses for attendance at professional or other necessary meetings. Request for approval for professional travel shall be made through the principals to the Superintendent or designee who shall have final approval. There should be ample advance notice of such request.
- C. An employee of the Board, with the permission of the Superintendent, may be absent not to exceed one day in any one year, without the loss of pay, for the purpose of observing the work in some other school. The work to be observed shall be closely related to the regular duties of the employee.
- D. Attendance shall be required at all professional meetings for which released time has been granted.
- E. The Board of Education retains the right to modify, restrict, or exceed established tuition, travel reimbursement, and/or registration rates.
- F. Professional leave may be utilized to attend a current Loveland student's funeral service with priority given to professional staff most recently working with that student.

ARTICLE 44 ASSAULT LEAVE

- A. A bargaining unit member who is absent from work due to a physical disability caused by a physical assault on him/her which occurred while the bargaining unit member was performing his/her contractual duties and which was not the result of improper conduct by the employee requesting leave shall be eligible for assault leave. Full pay status (days not charged as sick leave) pursuant to assault leave shall be granted for a period of up to thirty (30) days.
- B. The bargaining unit member will provide the following on the appropriate form, within two days of the occurrence when possible:

- 1. Nature of injury.
- Date and time of occurrence.
- 3. Identification of the individuals causing the assault if known.
- 4. Facts and circumstances surrounding the assault.
- 5. A certification from a licensed physician describing the nature of the injury sustained causing absence. If the employee is eligible for assault leave, but not worker's compensation, the Board will pay the cost of the physician's initial examination over and above that covered by the individual's insurance.
- 6. A statement indicating a willingness to pursue legal action against the assaulter(s).
- C. Upon completion of the appropriate form in Section B, the administration shall immediately advise the bargaining unit member of his/her rights and shall notify the bargaining unit member of its readiness to assist as follows:
 - 1. The administration shall immediately obtain all relevant information in writing from the students, bargaining unit members, and/or other witnesses and police;
 - 2. Act in appropriate ways as liaison between the bargaining unit member, police, and the courts;
 - 3. Jury Duty and Court Services section of this Contract shall be utilized for any legal and court appearances.
- D. Any student who commits assault and battery on a bargaining unit member will be removed from school at once, and appropriate suspension and expulsion policies applied. If the student has not been identified as disabled, such students shall not be readmitted to the assaulted bargaining unit member's classroom without the approval of the bargaining unit member. Students who have been identified as disabled, pursuant to ORC 3323.01, shall be suspended expelled or denied admittance to the bargaining unit member's class to the extent permitted by law.
- E. Following such leave, the employee shall be returned to duty provided she/he has not become eligible for disability retirement/allowance. A person on disability retirement/allowance shall be returned in accordance to ORC 3309.41. Return from Assault Leave shall be based upon the opinion of the teacher's licensed physician.
- F. Falsification of the signed statement to determine eligibility for assault leave benefits is grounds for suspension or termination of employment.

ARTICLE 44A CRISIS LEAVE

- A. A bargaining unit member who is absent from work due to an illness, impairment, or mental condition which was the result of a student crisis (e.g. student death, student suicide, school shooting, etc.) that occurred during the employment of the bargaining unit member may be eligible for crisis leave. Full pay status (days not charged as sick leave) pursuant to crisis leave may be granted for a period of up to thirty (30) days.
- B. The bargaining unit member will provide the following on the appropriate form, within two days of the occurrence when possible:
 - 1. Nature of illness, impairment, or mental condition.
 - 2. Date and time of student crisis leading to occurrence.
 - 3. Facts and circumstances surrounding the student crisis.
 - 4. A certification from a licensed physician describing the nature of the illness, impairment, or mental condition causing absence. If the employee is eligible for crisis leave, but not worker's compensation, the Board will pay the cost of the physician's initial examination over and above that covered by the individual's insurance.
- C. Following such leave, the employee shall be returned to duty provided she/he has not become eligible for disability retirement/allowance. A person on disability retirement/allowance shall be returned in accordance to ORC 3309.41. Return from Crisis Leave shall be based upon the opinion of the teacher's licensed physician.
- D. Falsification of the signed statement to determine eligibility for crisis leave benefits is grounds for suspension or termination of employment.

ARTICLE 45 SABBATICAL LEAVE

- A. Any bargaining unit member who has completed at least five (5) years as an employee of the Board may be granted a sabbatical leave of absence for professional study, research and/or professional improvement for one (1) or two (2) semesters, with the provision that the member shall receive a partial annual salary equal to the difference between the substitute teacher's pay and the member's expected salary, in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code.
- B. The fringe benefit program shall be continued by the Board for any bargaining unit member on sabbatical leave.

- C. Application for sabbatical leave for professional study, research, and/or professional improvement shall be made at least sixty (60) calendar days prior to the beginning of the requested leave. The application for the sabbatical leave shall be accompanied by an outline of the program of study or research to be pursued, or the proposal(s) for professional improvement. Application for a sabbatical leave which includes travel as an intended purpose of the leave shall outline the nature of the travel and shall describe the intended enhancement of the curriculum by the bargaining unit member, and shall give reasons why such travel may not be accomplished when schools are not in session and/or when the member is not on duty. The applicant must be notified by the Board of their disposition of his/her request within thirty (30) calendar days of their receipt of the request.
- D. Application shall be sent to the Superintendent. The applications shall include the plans for the use of the sabbatical leave and shall meet all requirements as established by a Sabbatical Leave Committee. The Sabbatical Leave Committee shall be composed of the Superintendent, one elementary school principal, one middle school or senior high school principal, one supervisor, and five (5) bargaining unit members. The bargaining unit members shall be selected by the Association. The Sabbatical Leave Committee shall be responsible for the final selection(s) of the applicants chosen.
- E. The Sabbatical Leave Committee shall recommend to the Board for its consideration either the acceptance or rejection of the leave request and in so doing, the committee will not recommend the acceptance of leave requests for more than ten (10) percent of the Bargaining Unit in any one school year nor recommend the approval of a sabbatical leave a second time for the same individual if other bargaining unit members have filed a request for a sabbatical leave nor shall the committee recommend the approval of sabbatical leave to the same person more often than once for each five (5) years that bargaining unit member has worked for the Board.
- F. Upon return from sabbatical leave a member's salary and fringe benefits shall be the same as he/she would have received had the period of his/her leave been spent in the District's schools and he/she shall be returned to the same position that he/she held at the time his/her leave commenced; the bargaining unit member shall accrue seniority while on sabbatical leave.
- G. A bargaining unit member who uses this sabbatical leave provision shall be obligated to return for one year of service in the district for each semester of leave granted by the Board upon return from sabbatical leave.
- H. The bargaining unit member on a sabbatical leave for which there is no substitute replacement shall have their salary difference calculated from the BA column, O Step and their current salary.
- I. The bargaining unit member on sabbatical shall have escrowed from the salary difference the calculated costs necessary for unemployment benefits for the eligible substitute hired to fill their position for the period of the sabbatical leave. Such monies, and/or remainder of monies plus accumulated interest shall be paid to the bargaining unit member if

unemployment compensation is not paid to the substitute hired for the bargaining unit member on sabbatical leave.

ARTICLE 46 JURY DUTY OR SUBPOENA

- A. An employee who is required to be absent in compliance with a summons for jury duty or a subpoena requiring the employee to appear in court as a witness shall give proper notice to the appropriate administrator.
- B. The employee shall be excused with pay for the period during which the employee is absent on scheduled days because of such jury service or court attendance. When an employee is excused from court duty for part of a day or for an entire day, the employee shall report to the appropriate administrator in person or by telephone, for such assignment as is reasonable under the circumstances.

ARTICLE 47 SICK LEAVE

- A. Rate of Accumulation Each member of the Bargaining Unit shall be granted sick leave at a rate of 1 1/4 days per completed month of service, or a total of fifteen (15) days per completed year of service.
- B. Beginning employees shall be forwarded five (5) days of sick leave, in the event a need arises prior to time of adequate accumulation. A first year bargaining unit member's maximum accumulation of sick leave is fifteen (15) days. Bargaining unit members who have exhausted their sick leave may request an advancement of five (5) days of leave.
- C. Credit Advance Pursuant to state law (ORC 3319.141), a bargaining unit member reemployed by the Board, who since leaving the employ of this Board, has been continuously employed by other boards of education or by state, county, or municipal governments in Ohio, will receive full credit for sick leave accumulated both in the prior employ of the Board and in the employment of other agencies of the state of Ohio listed above as shown in the records of the last employing organization to the maximum allowance.
- D. Maximum Accumulation The maximum accumulation of sick leave days shall be 260 days.
- E. Use of Sick Leave A bargaining unit member, may use sick leave for absence due to personal illness, pregnancy related illness, injury, exposure to contagious disease which could be communicated to other employees, and to illness, injury, or death in the employee's immediate family.
- F. Immediate Family Defined The immediate family shall include: parents, grandparents, spouse (partner or fiancé(e)), children, grandchildren, siblings, in-laws, and other persons who are permanent residents of the bargaining unit member's household.

- G. The Superintendent may grant the use of sick leave for other reasons such as, attending funerals of relatives or close friends.
- H. After five (5) applications for sick leave, the administration may question sick leave use, require physician verification and/or an explanation. Misuse of sick leave may be grounds for disciplinary action.
- I. For individuals requesting leave as part of maternity/paternity/adoption:
 - a. FMLA allows for up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave during a twelve (12) month period if a teacher has worked at least one thousand two hundred fifty (1250) hours during the preceding twelve (12) month period.
 - b. The District will require a teacher to use their accrued sick leave for any amount of time prior to their due date if medically required, and for time medically required for recovery (approximately six (6) calendar weeks) immediately following delivery.
 - c. The teacher will be required to contact or have someone contact the Personnel Office within forty-eight (48) hours of their delivery so that their leave may be calculated properly.
 - d. If a teacher is required by doctor's order to stay off work for longer than six (6) weeks after delivery, the teacher may use accrued sick leave to cover these days also.
 - e. Any days after the six (6) weeks post-delivery period that are not medically required will be at a "FMLA-unpaid" status and will be "docked" from the teacher's paycheck according to the number of days missed during a given pay period.
 - f. The teacher will be required to provide a "Fitness-for-Duty" statement from their doctor prior to reporting to work after the FMLA leave.
 - g. For Paternity Leave a father with a newborn may use accrued leave for a maximum of three (3) calendar weeks immediately following the birth of the child. Any additional time will be at a "FMLA-unpaid" status and will be "docked" from their paycheck according to the number of days missed during a given pay period.
 - h. For Adoption an adoptive parent who qualifies for FMLA leave may use accrued paid leave for a maximum of six (6) calendar weeks immediately following the placement of a child five years of age or younger or a maximum of two (2) calendar weeks immediately following the placement of a child over the age of five (5). Any additional time will be at a "FMLA-unpaid" status and will be "docked" from your paycheck according to the number of days missed during a given pay period.

ARTICLE 48 UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A. Request/Renewal:

- 1. Request upon the written request of a bargaining unit member, the Board of Education may grant a leave of absence for a period of not more than two consecutive school years for educational or professional or other purposes, and shall grant such leave where illness or other disability is the reason for the request (ORC 3319.13)
- 2. Renewal upon a subsequent request, such leave may be renewed by the Board.
- B. Said unpaid leave may commence at any time and shall be for a period of time not less than the remainder of the current semester for educational, professional, or medical purposes.
- C. A member may apply for intermittent unpaid leave up to 15 days per school year for medical purposes only.
- D. Application for unpaid leave shall contain a proposed date for the commencement of the leave and the date of intended return to active service.
- E. Upon return from said leave, the bargaining unit member will be entitled to the same position(s) held prior to the leave or to as substantially equivalent a position as feasible. If the initial period of leave is extended, the Board's only obligation shall be to return the bargaining unit member to any position for which the bargaining unit member is certified or certifiable.
- F. If the bargaining unit member desires to return to active service prior to the stated date of return on the application for leave, the bargaining unit member shall notify the Superintendent in writing, that an early return is requested and the date upon which the bargaining unit member wishes to return. Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board of Education may authorize the early return of the bargaining unit member. If the early return is authorized by the Board, the bargaining unit member shall return on the date authorized which shall be at the beginning of the next grading period. The bargaining unit member shall be placed in a position assignment as agreed to by the Board and the bargaining unit member in writing prior to the authorization by the Board.
- G. If the bargaining unit member desires to continue his/her group insurance benefits he/she may do so by remitting the premiums to the Treasurer of the Board. Such remittance shall not be required more than thirty (30) days in advance. Upon signature on the proper form to continue his/her group insurance benefits, the bargaining unit member shall enjoy uninterrupted coverage for the duration of the approved leave, and when necessary, premiums on behalf of the employee shall be made retroactively or prospectively to assure uninterrupted participation and coverage.

- H. Prior to February 15th of any given school year, for any employee on unpaid leave of absence, the personnel office will send out a written notice to determine such employee's intent to return to work for the following school year. Such employee must notify the personnel office in writing on or before March 1st of that year of his/her intent to return to work for the coming school year. Such employee who does not notify the district of his/her intent in writing on or before March 1st will waive his/her right to employment in the district. For any such employee who fails to notify the personnel office, this provision shall supersede sections 3319.11, 3391.111, and 3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code. Thereafter, any such employee may request from the personnel office a list of vacancies for which the employee is qualified.
- I. By policy, the Board of Education provides for additional leave in compliance with the Family and Medical Leave Act.

ARTICLE 49 STUDENTS UNDER INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PLANS (IEP) OR SECTION 504 PLANS

- A. The Board shall provide the necessary related services personnel and supplemental materials, as identified in the IEP or 504 plan.
- B. Copies of all IEP's and 504 plans will be kept in the appropriate school office and will be made available to the impacted bargaining unit members through the building administrators prior to assignment when possible. Impacted bargaining unit members will be included in the IEP process when possible.
- C. If requested by the bargaining unit member, the Board shall provide the necessary in-service training and/or staff development programs, as deemed appropriate by the Board, for bargaining unit members whose duties are impacted by IEP's and 504 plans. These days may coincide with or be in addition to the bargaining unit member's regular district in-service days.

SECTION VI

Article 50 Duration

Article 51 Complete Agreement

Article 52 Contrary to Law

Article 53 Labor/Management Committee

ARTICLE 50 DURATION

Except as otherwise may be provided herein, this Contract shall become effective July 1, 2021, and shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2023 at which time it shall expire.

ARTICLE 51 COMPLETE AGREEMENT

During the term of this Agreement the Board shall not establish any rules, regulations and/or policies which directly contravene any of the negotiated terms and conditions set forth herein unless required by a state or federal statute or law now existing or hereafter adopted or decided.

This agreement expresses the entire and complete agreement between the Board and the Association and it constitutes the complete and exclusive agreement governing the relationship of the parties and supersedes all prior understanding, agreements, and practices between the Board and the Association or the certificated teaching personnel covered by this Agreement, whether written or oral, express or implied, and may not be modified except in writing, signed by the parties hereto and during the full term of this Agreement neither the Board nor the Association may require the other party to negotiate on any subject covered or not covered by this Agreement except with respect to a uniform change in salaries and fringe benefits.

Except as expressly modified by the provisions of this Agreement, all rights, powers, duties and responsibilities which the Board had prior to this Agreement including those vested under all federal or state statutes and the common law, are recognized and remain vested exclusively with the Board which retains the final responsibility and obligation to manage and establish the policies for the operation and management of all of the public schools of whatever name or character in the District.

ARTICLE 52 CONTRARY TO LAW

In accordance with the authority as provided by Ohio Revised Code, Section 4117.10, the provisions of this master contract shall supersede and take precedence over any and all portions of the Ohio Revised Code which may be contrary to any of the provisions and/or language contained in this master contract.

ARTICLE 53 LABOR/MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

A Labor/Management Committee shall be created to meet informally as an aid to communications between the parties. The membership of the committee shall include the Superintendent or designee and two additional administrators, plus the LEA President and two additional bargaining unit members.

The committee will meet quarterly during the school year, with the dates determined by the Superintendent or designee and the LEA President. The same two individuals will meet prior to each Labor/Management meeting to set the agenda.

Committee procedures shall consist of joint, informal discussion aimed at clarifying or addressing issues of concern to both parties. The open discussions held by this committee shall not be construed as negotiations, nor as an official decision making process. Anytime the agenda includes financial issues, or issues surrounding the 403b, the Treasurer shall be included in the Labor Management meeting.

ARTICLE 54 CAMERAS IN THE CLASSROOM

A bargaining unit member will be consulted prior to the utilization of a camera in the classroom for the purposes of providing instruction to students who are unable to attend school because of a disability or health-related reason. Mutual agreement will be reached between the administration and the teacher on a plan for the use of a camera in such circumstances.

SIGNATURE PAGE

ASSOCIATION RATIFICATION ON THE <u>16th DAY OF AUG.</u> 2021.	APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON THE <u>31st DAY OF AUG.</u> 2021.
Megan Kittle Megan Kittle, President Loveland Education Association Date 9-8-2021	Nathryn h Larenge Dr. Kathy Lorenz, President Loveland Board of Education Date 9/8/2021
Katie Rose, Immediate Past President Loveland Education Association	Mike Broadwater, Superintendent Loveland City Schools
Date 9-8-2021	Date 9/8 2
Chris Switzer, Co-Vice President	Rob Giuffre', Interim Treas arer
Loveland Education Association	Loveland City Schools
Date 9-9-21	Date_ 9/8/2021
Greg Croskey, Co-Vice President Loveland Education Association	
Date 9-8-2021	
Craig Murnan Member	
Loveland Education Association	
Data 9-9-2021	

APPENDIX I

LOVELAND CITY SCHOOLS TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE 2021-2022 & 2022-2023

	GRO	OUPI	GRO	JP II	GRO	UP III	GROU	JP IV	GROU	JP V	GROU	IP VI
STEP	BA	Salary	BA +150	Salary	MA	Salary	MA +10	Salary	MA +20	Salary	MA +30	Salary
1	1.0000	44,167	1.0620	46,905	1.1150	49,246	1.1650	51,455	1.2150	53,663	1.2725	56,203
2	1.0462	46,208	1.1082	48,946	1.1670	51,543	1.2170	53,751	1.2670	55,960	1.3245	58,499
3	1.0924	48,248	1.1544	50,986	1.2190	53,840	1.2690	56,048	1.3190	58,256	1.3765	60,796
4	1.1386	50,289	1.2006	53,027	1.2710	56,136	1.3210	58,345	1.3710	60,553	1.4285	63,093
5	1.1848	52,329	1.2468	55,067	1.3230	58,433	1.3730	60,641	1.4230	62,850	1.4805	65,389
6	1.2310	54,370	1.2930	57,108	1.3750	60,730	1.4250	62,938	1.4750	65,146	1.5325	67,686
7	1.2772	56,410	1.3392	59,148	1.4270	63,026	1.4770	65,235	1.5270	67,443	1.5845	69,983
8	1.3234	58,451	1.3854	61,189	1.4790	65,323	1.5290	67,531	1.5790	69,740	1.6365	72,279
9	1.3696	60,491	1.4316	63,229	1.5310	67,620	1.5810	69,828	1.6310	72,036	1.6885	74,576
10	1,4158	62,532	1.4778	65,270	1.5830	69,916	1.6330	72,125	1.6830	74,333	1.7405	76,873
11	1.4620	64,572	1.5240	67,311	1.6350	72,213	1.6850	74,421	1.7350	76,630	1.7925	79,169
12	1.5082	66,613	1.5702	69,351	1.6870	74,510	1.7370	76,718	1.7870	78,926	1.8445	81,466
13	1.5544	68,653	1.6164	71,392	1.7390	76,806	1.7890	79,015	1.8390	81,223	1.8965	83,763
14	1.6006	70,694	1.6626	73,432	1.7910	79,103	1.8410	81,311	1.8910	83,520	1.9485	86,059
15	1.6468	72,734	1.7088	75,473	1.8430	81,400	1.8930	83,608	1.9430	85,816	2.0005	88,356
16	1.6930	74,775	1.7550	77,513	1.8950	83,696	1.9450	85,905	1.9950	88,113	2.0525	90,653
17	1.7392	76,815	1.8012	79,554	1.9470	85,993	1.9970	88,201	2.0470	90,410	2.1045	92,949
18	1.7392	76,815	1.8012	79,554	1.9470	85,993	1.9970	88,201	2.0470	90,410	2.1045	92,949
19	1.7854	78,856	1.8474	81,594	1.9990	88,290	2.0490	90,498	2.0990	92,707	2.1565	95,246
20	1.7854	78,856	1.8474	81,594	1.9990	88,290	2.0490	90,498	2.0990	92,707	2.1565	95,246
21	1.8316	80,896	1.8936	83,635	2.0510	90,587	2.1010	92,795	2.1510	95,003	2.2085	97,543
22	1.8316	80,896	1.8936	83,635	2.0510	90,587	2.1010	92,795	2.1510	95,003	2.2085	97,543
23	1.8778	82,937	1.9398	85,675	2.1030	92,883	2.1530	95,092	2.2030	97,300	2.2605	99,840
24	1.8778	82,937	1.9398	85,675	2.1030	92,883	2.1530	95,092	2.2030	97,300	2.2605	99,840
25	1.8778	82,937	1.9398	85,675	2.1030	92,883	2.1530	95,092	2.2030	97,300	2.2605	99,840
26	1.8778	82,937	1.9398	85,675	2.1030	92,883	2.1530	95,092	2.2030	97,300	2.2605	99,840
27	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
28	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
29	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
30	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
31	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
32	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
33	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
34	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922
35	1.8995	83,895	1.9615	86,634	2.1275	93,965	2.1775	96,174	2.2275	98,382	2.2850	100,922

Bargaining Unit members will be placed on the newly adopted salary schedule in accordance with the following:

 Current members will be placed on the step closest to but not decrease from the salary that they would have been paid in the 2021-2022 school year based on the 2020-2021 salary schedule. Members will advance annually from that point.

2. Members who have a continuing contract as of the 2021-2022 school year, and whose actual years of teaching experience are greater than their step placement under No. 1 above, may be provided up to an additional two steps. In order to qualify for these additional steps, the member must provide the Treasurer with a statement from the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio indicating that his/her actual years of teaching experience are greater than their step placement under No. 1 above no later than September 15th 2021. The Treasurer will verify the member's entitlement to these additional steps and award the member with additional steps commensurate with their actual years of teaching experience as reflected in the statement from STRS, up to an additional two steps. Members will advance annually from that point.

Members who were paid at the step 23 salary on the 2020-2021 salary schedule will be paid the step 27 salary and placed on step 27 or
the step commensurate with their experience with Loveland City Schools, whichever is higher. Members will advance annually from
that point.

APPENDIX Ia

1. (\$9,000)	Building	I Salary Salary	# of Positions
/arsity Head Football Coach	LHS	\$9,000	1
/arsity Boys Basketball Head Coach	LHS	\$9,000	1
/arsity Girls Basketball Head Coach	LHS	\$9,000	1
/arsity Wrestling Head Coach	LHS	\$9,000	1
II. (\$6,500)		Salary	# of Positions
/arsity Girls Soccer Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Boys Soccer Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Girls Volleyball Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Boys Volleyball Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Baseball Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Fastpitch Softball Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Girls Track Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
/arsity Boys Track Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Girls Cross Country Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Boys Cross Country Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Swiming Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Girls Lacrosse Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
/arsity Boys Lacrosse Head Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Assistant Football Coach	LHS	\$6,500	7
arsity Assistant Girls Basketball Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
/arsity Assistant Boys Basketball Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
arsity Assistant Wrestling Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
unior Varsity Girls Head Basketball Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
unior Varsity Boys Head Basketball Coach	LHS	\$6,500	1
unior Varsity Head Football Coach	LHS	\$6,500	0
III. (\$5,000)		Salary	# of Positions
arsity Assistant Girls Soccer Coach	LHS	\$5,000	1
arsity Assistant Boys Soccer Coach	LRS	\$5,000	1
arsity Assistant Girls Volleyball Coach	LHS	\$5,000	1
arsity Assistant Boys Volleyball Coach	LHS	\$5,000	1
unior Varsity Head Wrestling Coach	LHS	\$5,000	1
IV. (\$4,500)		Salary	# of Positions
arsity Assistant Baseball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
arsity Assistant Fastpitch Softball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
arsity Assistant Girls Lacrosse Coach	LHS	\$4,500	
arsity Assistant Boys Lacrosse Coach 1	LHS	\$4,500	2
arsity Assistant Boys Lacrosse Coach 2	LHS	\$4,500	
unior Varsity Head Girls Soccer Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
unior Varsity Head Boys Soccer Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
unior Varsity Head Girls Volleyball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
unior Varsity Head Boys Volleyball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
unior Varsity Head Baseball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
unior Varsity Head Fastpitch Softball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	10.00
lunior Varsity Head Girls Lacrosse Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1

Junior Varsity Head Boys Lacrosse Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
Freshman Head Girls Basketball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
Freshman Head Boys Basketball Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
Freshman Head Football Coach	LHS	\$4,500	1
Middle School Head Football Coach	LMS	\$4,500	2
Middle School Head Boys Basketball Coach	LMS	\$4,500	3
Middle School Head Girls Basketball Coach	LMS	\$4,500	3
Middle School Head Wrestling Coach	LMS	\$4,500	2
V. (\$4,000)	Line	The State of the S	# of Positions
Varsity Girls Bowling Head Coach	LHS	\$4,000	1
Varsity Boys Bowling Head Coach	LHS	\$4,000	
Varsity Girls Golf Head Coach	LHS	\$4,000	1
Varsity Boys Golf Head Coach	LHS	\$4,000	1
Varsity Girls Tennis Head Coach	LHS	\$4,000	- 1
Varsity Boys Tennis Head Coach	LHS	\$4,000	- 1
Varsity Cheerleading Head Coach (fall/winter)	LHS	\$4,000	2
	LHO		# of Positions
VI. (\$3,500) Academic Quiz Team Head Coach	LHS	\$3,500	# OF POSITIONS
Varsity Head Diving Coach	LIIS	\$3,500	1
Varsity Assistant Track Coach	LHS	\$3,500	4
Varsity Assistant Track Coach	LHS	\$3,500	2
	LHS		1
Varsity Assistant Girls Cross Country Coach Varsity Assistant Boys Cross Country Coach	10000000	\$3,500 \$3,500	1
	LHS	\$3,500	1
Junior Varsity Assistant Wrestling Coach Freshman Assistant Football Coach	LHS	\$3,500	1
Middle School Head Track Coach	LMS	\$3,500	2
	LMS	\$3,500	2
Middle School Head Cross Country Coach Middle School Assistant Football Coach	LIVIS	\$3,500	4
VII. (\$3,000)	LINIS	Salary	# of Positions
Junior Varsity Girls Golf Coach	LHS	\$3,000	# OI FOSICIONS
Junior Varsity Boys Golf Coach	LHS	\$3,000	1
Junior Varsity Girls Tennis Coach	LHS	\$3,000	2
Junior Varsity Boys Tennis Coach	LHS	\$3,000	2
Junior Varsity Boys Termis Coach	LHS	\$3,000	2
Junior Varsity Swim Coach	LHS	\$3,000	1
Junior Varsity Swiff Coach Junior Varsity Cheerleading Coach (fall/winter)	LHS	\$3,000	2
Freshman Baseball Coach	LHS	\$3,000	1
Freshman Cheerleading Coach (fall/winter)	LHS	\$3,000	2
Freshman Boys Lacrosse Coach	LHS	\$3,000	1
Freshman Girls Lacrosse Coach	LHS	\$3,000	
Freshman Girls Soccer Coach	LHS	\$3,000	1
	14110	\$3,000	
Freshman Roys Soccer Coach	LHS		
	LHS		1
Freshman Girls Volleyball Coach	LHS	\$3,000	1
Freshman Girls Volleyball Coach Middle School Head Volleyball Coach	- Park 1 2 7 1	\$3,000 \$3,000	2
Freshman Girls Volleyball Coach Middle School Head Volleyball Coach VIII. (\$2,500)	LHS	\$3,000 \$3,000 Salary	2 # of Positons
Middle School Head Cheer Coach (fall/winter)	LHS	\$3,000 \$3,000 Salary \$2,500	2 # of Positons 4
Freshman Girls Volleyball Coach Middle School Head Volleyball Coach VIII. (\$2,500) Middle School Head Cheer Coach (fall/winter) Middle School Head Tennis Coach	LMS LMS	\$3,000 \$3,000 Salary \$2,500 \$2,500	# of Positons 4
Freshman Girls Volleyball Coach Middle School Head Volleyball Coach VIII. (\$2,500) Middle School Head Cheer Coach (fall/winter) Middle School Head Tennis Coach Middle School Assistant Cross Country Coach	LMS LMS LMS LMS	\$3,000 \$3,000 Salary \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500	# of Positons 4 2 2 2 2
Freshman Girls Volleyball Coach Middle School Head Volleyball Coach VIII. (\$2,500) Middle School Head Cheer Coach (fall/winter) Middle School Head Tennis Coach	LMS LMS	\$3,000 \$3,000 Salary \$2,500 \$2,500	# of Positons 4 2 2 2 3

APPENDIX Ib

Loveland Activities Su	pplemental	Propo	sal
			New Position
Tier I (\$3,000)	Buidling	Salary	# Positions
Yearbook	LHS	\$3,000	1
Robotics	LHS	\$3,000	1
Agent browner (* Aren Me)			
Tier II (\$2,500)		-	
Asst. Robotics	LHS	\$2,500	1
Student Activity	LHS	\$2,500	1
Student Council	LHS	\$2,500	11
National Honor Society	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Special Education	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - English	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Social Studies	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Foreign Language	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Health/PE	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Math	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Science	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Art	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Tech/Business	LHS	\$2,500	1
Dept Chair - Music	LHS	\$2,500	1
Class Advisors-Seniors	LHS	\$2,500	1
Class Advisors-Juniors	LHS	\$2,500	1
Class Adviosrs-Sophomores	LHS	\$2,500	1
Class Advisors-Freshmen	LHS	\$2,500	1
Yearbook	LMS	\$2,500	1
Robotics	LMS	\$2,500	1
LPDC Chair	Dist	\$2,500	1
Saturday School	Dist	\$2,500	1
Tier III (\$2,000)			
K-8 Subject Area Leaders			
(1) ELA @ LECC	LECC	\$2,000	1
(1) Math @ LECC	LECC	\$2,000	1
(1) Science/Social Studies @ LECC	LECC	\$2,000	.1
(1) ELA @ LPS	LPS	\$2,000	1
(1) Math @ LPS	LPS	\$2,000	1
(1) Science/Social Studies @ LPS	LPS	\$2,000	1
(1) ELA @ LES	LES	\$2,000	1
(1) Math @ LES	LES	\$2,000	1
(1) Science @ LES	LES	\$2,000	1
(1) Social Studies @ LES	LES	\$2,000	1
(1) ELA (Grade 5) @ LIS (split with 6th)	LIS	\$2,000	1
(1) ELA (Grade 6) @ LIS (split with 5th)	LIS	\$2,000	1
(1) Math (Grade 5) @ LIS (split with 6th)	LIS	\$2,000	1
(1) Math (Grade 6) @ LIS (split with 5th)	LIS	\$2,000	1

(1) Science (Grade 5) @ LIS (split with 6th)	LIS	\$2,000	1
(1) Science (Grade 6) @ LIS (split with 5th)	LIS	\$2,000	1
(1) Social Studies (Grade 5) @ LIS (split with 6th)	LIS	\$2,000	1
1) Social Studies (Grade 6) @ LIS (split with 5th)	LIS	\$2,000	1
1) ELA @ LMS	LMS	\$2,000	1
(1) Math @ LMS	LMS	\$2,000	1
1) Science @ LMS	LMS	\$2,000	1
1) Social Studies @ LMS	LMS	\$2,000	1
K-6 Grade Level Coordinators	1 00000		
Kindergarten @ LECC	LECC	\$2,000	1
First Grade @ LECC	LECC	\$2,000	1
First Grade @ LPS	LPS	\$2,000	. 1
Second Grade @ LPS	LPS	\$2,000	1
Third Grade @ LES	LES	\$2,000	1
Fourth Grade @ LES	LES	\$2,000	1
Fifth Grade @ LIS	LIS	\$2,000	1
Sixth Grade @ LIS	LIS	\$2,000	1
7-8 Team Leaders			
Seventh Grade (3) @ LMS	LMS	\$6,000	3
Eighth Grade (3) @ LMS	LMS	\$6,000	3
Newspaper	LHS	\$2,000	1
orom or	LHS	\$2,000	1
Student Council	LMS	\$2,000	1
National Junior Honor Society	LMS	\$2,000	1
Mentor Teacher Chair	Dist	\$2,000	- 1
Tier IV (\$1,000)			
LPDC Member	LHS	\$1,000	1
PDC Member	LHS	\$1,000	1
PDC Member	LMS	\$1,000	1
PDC Member	LIS	\$1,000	1
PDC Member	LES	\$1,000	1
.PDC Member	LPS	\$1,000	1
PDC Member	LECC	\$1,000	1
Vientor Teachers (14)	Dist	\$14,000	14
LPDC Member LPDC Member Mentor Teachers (14)	LECC		\$1,000
Stipend Pool: (Payout to be distributed per building	based upon		# # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # #
approval process.)			
HS	\$9,000		
LMS	\$7,500		
.IS	\$5,000		
ES	\$1,000		X X
PS	\$1,000		
LECC	\$1,000		

APPENDIX 1c

Loveland Fine Arts Su	ipplemental S	alary Sche	dule
1. (\$6000)	Building	Salary	# of Positions
Marching Band	LHS	\$6,000	1
II. (\$3500)		Salary	# of Positions
Band Director	LHS	\$3,500	1
Choir Director	LHS	\$3,500	1
Jazz Band Director	LHS	\$3,500	1
Orchestra Director	LHS	\$3,500	1
Show Choir Director	LHS	\$3,500	1
Drama Director	LHS	\$3,500	1
III. (\$3000)		Salary	# of Positions
Band Director	LMS	\$3,000	1
Choir Director	LMS	\$3,000	1
Orchestra Director	LMS	\$3,000	1
Show Choir Director	LMS	\$3,000	1
Drama Director	LMS	\$3,000	1
Asst. Drama Director	LHS	\$3,000	2
Assistant Marching Band	LHS	\$3,000	1
Marching Band Guard	LHS	\$3,000	2
Marching Band Percussion	LHS	\$3,000	1
Marching Band Woodwind	LHS	\$3,000	1
Marching Band Brass	LHS	\$3,000	1
IV. (\$2,500)		Salary	# of Positions
Assistant Band Director	LHS	\$2,500	1
Assistant Band Director	LMS	\$2,500	1
Assistant Choir Director	LHS	\$2,500	1
Assistant Show Choir Director	LHS	\$2,500	2
Assistant Drama Director	LMS		The state of the s
		\$2,500	1
Pep Band	LHS	\$2,500	1
Stage Band	LHS LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500	1
Stage Band Show Choir Band	LHS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500	1 1 1
Stage Band	LHS LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500	1 1 1
Stage Band Show Choir Band	LHS LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band	LHS LMS LHS/LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 Salary	# of Positions
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000)	LHS LMS LHS/LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 Salary \$2,000 \$2,000	# of Positions
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band	LHS LMS LHS/LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 Salary	1
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band Beginning Choir	LHS LMS LHS/LMS LHS/LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$2,000	# of Positions # of Positions
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band Beginning Choir Beginning Orchestra	LHS LMS LHS/LMS LHS/LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$2,000	1
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band Beginning Choir Beginning Orchestra VI (1,500)	LHS LMS LHS/LMS LIS LIS LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$2,000	1
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band Beginning Choir Beginning Orchestra VI (1,500) Assistant Show Choir Director	LHS LMS LHS/LMS LIS LIS LMS LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$2,000	1
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band Beginning Choir Beginning Orchestra VI (1,500) Assistant Show Choir Director THESPIAN SOC. ADV	LHS LMS LHS/LMS LIS LIS LMS LMS LMS LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$1,500	1
Stage Band Show Choir Band District Music Advisor V (\$2,000) Beginning Band Beginning Choir Beginning Orchestra VI (1,500) Assistant Show Choir Director THESPIAN SOC. ADV DRAMA MUSICAL DIRECTOR	LHS LMS LHS/LMS LIS LIS LMS LMS LMS LMS	\$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$2,000 \$1,500 \$1,500	# of Positions

APPENDIX II

Ohio Revised Code1347, 3309.41, 3313.20, 3313.47, 3317.13, 3317.14, 3319.11, 3319.111, 3319.13, 3319.141, 3323.01, 4117 and 4117.08

To access these or any Ohio Revised Code documentation go to http://codes.ohio.gov/orc

Enter the desired ORC number in the SEARCH field and click on "Go." A results window will open at the bottom of the page. From there click on the link desired.

The document will appear to the left of the page and a list of chapters within the document will appear on the right side of the page. From the chapter list, click on the appropriate chapter and then the referenced document will open.

APPENDIX III

RESIDENT EDUCATOR MENTORING

- The Board shall have a mentoring program for Resident Educators (RE) in years 1, 2, and 3, as defined by the Ohio Department of Education.
- The program shall be coordinated by a bargaining unit member who has received Ohio Department of Education mentoring training and will be selected by the Administration.
- Teacher mentors will be selected by from the Association by the coordinator and the administration. Mentors must receive Ohio Department of Education mentoring training.
- The salaries of the coordinator and the mentors shall be computed by multiplying the appropriate index number by the BA column, Step 5 and listed in the Supplemental Salary Schedule.
- It is agreed that the posting process will not be required in the selection of the coordinator and mentors. If mentors have more than one EYT mentee, they will receive full stipend for each.
- Every mentee in the district will be assigned a mentor.
- New teachers who do not qualify for the Resident Educator program may be assigned a
 mentor at the discretion of the administration. Mentors in these situations would be
 compensated according to the above.
- The Memorandum will expire June 30, 2021

For the Association:	Date:
For the Board:	Date:

APPENDIX IV

3120.06 - SELECTING STUDENT TEACHERS/ADMINISTRATIVE INTERNS

The Board of Education encourages cooperation with State-approved colleges and universities in the training of student teachers and administrative interns, because the public school offers an essential ingredient - direct experience with students and teachers at work in the classroom. However, certain safeguards have been found to be necessary for the best interests of all concerned.

Colleges and universities should first make contact with the Assistant Superintendent regarding placement of a student teacher or administrative intern.

The Assistant Superintendent shall make the final placement of student teachers or administrative interns.

Professional staff members who agree to serve as supervisors of student teachers or administrative interns may accept honoraria or stipends directly from the college/university for those services rendered outside the regular school day and above and beyond the duties and responsibilities specified in their contracts.

The following conditions shall also be met:

A. The institution making the assignment shall provide to the District on-going supervision in a manner suitable

B. If at any time the quality of teaching or administrative internship is judged to be inferior or s/he is disruptive to the on-going program, the Assistant Superintendent may request withdrawal of that person from the program.

The Board also authorizes the Superintendent to provide, in cooperation with appropriate colleges and universities, a "field experience" program in order for selected interns to gain first-hand knowledge of and experience in a school environment.

The Superintendent may terminate a teaching program if one or more aspects of the program are not of high quality or meeting District needs or expectations.

Student teachers and administrative interns who will receive any financial remuneration from the District must complete a DMA form with no positive indications that material assistance has been provided to a terrorist organization before working in the District (see Policy 8120).

Student teachers and administrative interns also must pass a background check performed by the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation (see Policy 3121).

R.C. 2909.34, 3319.282, 3319.39

Adoption 6/15/99 Revised 2/20/07

9130.01 - PUBLIC COMPLAINTS ABOUT THE CURRICULUM OR INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

The Board recognizes the need and right of students to free access to many different types of books and materials. It also recognizes the right of the professional staff to select books and other materials supportive of the Board's educational philosophy and goals.

Criticism of a book or other materials used in the District may be expected from time to time. In such instances, the following guidelines shall apply.

If a parent requests that his/her own child not read a given book or use a given material, the teacher and/or school administrator should resolve the issue, perhaps by arranging for use of alternative material meeting essentially the same instructional purpose.

- A. The Board does not permit any individual or group to exercise censorship over instructional materials and library collections, but it recognizes that, at times, a material may be desirable. Should an individual or group ask to have any book or other -evaluation of certain material withdrawn from school use, the following steps are taken.
 - 1. The person who objects to the book or other material is asked to sign a complaint on a standard form documenting his/her criticism.
 - 2. Following receipt of the formal complaint, the Superintendent provides for a re-evaluation of the material in question. He/She arranges for the appointment of a review committee from among the faculty and community to consider the complaint.
 - 3. The Superintendent reviews the complaint and the committee's reevaluation and renders a decision in the matter. Should the decision be unsatisfactory to the complainant, it may be appealed to the Board.

The Board assumes final responsibility for all books and instructional materials which it makes available to students, and it holds its professional staff accountable for their proper selections. The Board also recognizes rights of individual parents with respect to controversial materials used by their own children and provides for the re-evaluation of materials in library collections upon formal request.

R.C. 3329.07; 3329.08; 3329.09

CROSS REFERENCE: Policies 2240, 2510, 2520, 2520.02, 9130, 9130.02

Adoption 6/15/99

AG9130.01 – COMPLAINT REVIEW COMMITTEE PROCEDURES

The Board will make every effort to provide stimulating, effective teaching materials that will be appropriate to the community's values and the students' ability and maturity level.

School district personnel assumes the obligation of observing the following procedures in dealing with questions or challenges from parents or other individuals or groups in the community regarding books or other instructional materials.

There are two types of requests for removal of materials alleged to be objectionable:

- A. requests that an individual student be excused from reading certain specified material and
- B. requests that specified material be removed from curriculum.

When a parent or guardian of an individual student requests that the student be excused from reading specified material, that request must be in writing and the individual may be excused from reading a specified selection. The teacher will assign the student a book or materials of approximately equal merit and appropriate to the same or related objectives when such materials are available.

All challenges to remove specified materials from use must be presented in writing and include the name of the author, the title, the publisher and the objections by pages and items. The statement must be signed and identified in such a way that a proper reply will be possible.

When films or other nonprint materials are challenged for their appropriateness for use in the school instructional program by parents or legal guardians, the appropriate form provided for this purpose shall

be used. Written information specifying the precise nature of the objection shall be given. If a complainant wants to review the materials, they may do so in a designated area on District property. When such a request for reconsideration is received, the committee procedures shall be as follows:

Depending upon the extent and use of the challenged material, either a building level and/or District level review committee shall be established.

A building review committee will function as follows.

- A. A secondary building level review committee shall be composed of the principal, the librarian and three other faculty members appointed by the principal and two community members appointed by the Superintendent.
- B. An elementary building level review committee shall be composed of the principal and three classroom teachers, appointed by the principal and two community members appointed by the Superintendent.

If the complaint cannot be resolved on the building level, a review committee will be formed. The review committee shall be appointed by the Superintendent and shall be composed of two principals and three teachers competent in the field under question. <u>Committee Review Procedures</u>

In deliberations a committee shall consider the attitudes of the other teachers within the same subject area toward the materials, the opinions of other competent authorities including parents, reviews of the materials by the American Library Association and other reputable reviewers including parents, and the teacher's written rationale for using the materials.

The report from the building or review committee shall be submitted to the Superintendent for his/her information or for submission to the Board for a final decision. A written response shall be forwarded to the objecting party after the decision is made. Any restriction of use placed on the challenged materials will be done at the directions of the Superintendent.

Copyright NEOLA 2001

APPENDIX V

Glossary of Abbreviations

AAA American Arbitration Association

DD 214 U. S. Military Discharge Papers

3430.01 Loveland School Board Policy

IRS Internal Revenue Service

9130.01 Loveland School Board Policy

AG9130.01 Administrative Guideline

EYT Entry Year Teacher

3120.06 Loveland School Board Policy

LEA Loveland Education Association

NEA National Education Association

OEA Ohio Education Association

ORC Ohio Revised Code

SERB State Employment Relations Board

STRS State Teachers Retirement System of the State of Ohio

SWOEA Southwestern Ohio Education Association

TSA Tax Sheltered Annuity

APPENDIX VI

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING Between THE LOVELAND BOARD OF EDUCATION And THE LOVELAND EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into between the Loveland Board of Education (hereinafter the Board) and the Loveland Education Association (hereinafter the Association) to allow for those grandfathered in Article 39 with children currently enrolled in Loveland City Schools to remain enrolled after the retirement of said bargaining unit member until the graduation of said children. It is understood that the Association does not waive any of its rights unless they are specifically listed in this document. The parties agree to the following:

- 1. Non-resident students who are children of current full-time bargaining unit members may continue to attend Loveland City Schools on a non-tuition basis after the retirement of their parent until said student's graduation.
- 2. All other aspects of Article 39 remain intact.
- 3. Bargaining unit members covered under this Memorandum of Understanding:

Jeff Geiger Sandy Geiger

- 1. Any qualifying bargaining member omitted from the list above shall be automatically included in this memorandum.
- 2. The Board and Association further acknowledge, agree and understand that nothing contained herein shall be construed or utilized as "past practice" or "precedent setting" in any related or unrelated, current or future grievance, arbitration, litigation or matter of contract interpretation involving the Board and the Association.

Katie Rose, LEA President	Date	Amy Crouse, Superintendent	Date

APPENDIX VII



Submission of Transcript Form

Please complete and attach to $\underline{\text{original}}$ transcripts when submitting them for consideration.

(Hard copy or digital; <u>digital must have routing page</u> from clearing house attached)

Name:		
Building:		
Name of College or University:		
Name of Course/Courses Complete	d:	
Date of Course/Courses Completed	l	
Indicate which purpose the transcripts	are being submitted:	
Salary Bump		
Anticipated salary placement:	BA150	
	MA	
	MA+10	3
ý.	MA+20	
	MA+30	
Licensure / IPDP		
Reimbursement		
Please also attach bursar's rec	eipt	
File for future use		